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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-9544 1.800452-3345 ExL 9544

Fox: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhb$.nb.gov

September 3, 2021

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing Workforce
Readiness ar»d Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant Use
Disorder, by exercising renewal options by Increasing the total price limitation by $310,000 from
$538,936 to $848,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2021 to
September 29, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Govemor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater Tllton

Area Family
Resource

Center.

Tilton/NH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$227,063 $124,000 $351,063

0: 08/14/19

Item #10

A1:02/17/21

Item #20

Granite

Pathways,
Concord/NH

228900-

B001
Statewide $311,873 $186,000 $497,873

0: 09/18/19

Item #19

A1;02/17/21

Item #20

Total: $538,936 $310,000 $846,936

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if need^ and Justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to have the Contractors continue to provide vocational
training supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant
Use Disorders who are in treatment and recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or re-

The Dtparlmtnl of HeaUh and Human Seroioti'h4iuion is to join communities and families
in prouiding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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join the workforce. Services provided through the contracts support individuals in attaining gainful
employment, which is a critical aspect of continued sobriety.

Approximately 200 individuals will be senred from September 30. 2021 to September 29
2022.

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking
individuals to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources
that assist the individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not
limited to, providing assistance with resume writing, completing Job applications, and improving
interviewing skills.

The Department will continue monitoring contracted services by reviewing monthly and
quarterly reports submitted by the Contractors and monitor the following perfomiance measures:

•  Ensuring ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided training programs.

•  Ensuring seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain employment.

•  Ensuring contact and coordination with one hundred percent (100%) of Recovery
Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties' have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of sen/ices, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew sen/ices for one (1) year of the one (1) available year remaining.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals In recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain in recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.788. FAIN #H79TI083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05*92-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT, HHS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds

(Vendor Name Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center Vendor # 297434

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $29,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $93,000.00 $93,000.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $31,000.00 $31,000.00

Sub Total $227,063.00 $124,000.00 $351,063.00

(Vendor Name Granite Pathways Vendor # 228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00
2021 102-600731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $139,500.00 $139,500.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total $311,873.00 $186,000.00 $497,873.00

Overall Total $538,936.00 $310,000.00 $848,936.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Siervlces

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
{"State" or "Department") and Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019, (Item #10), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$351,063.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 5.2., to read:

5.2. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 5.11., to read:

5.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana for treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

5.11.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that provides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

5.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memoranda of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 5.12., to read:

5.12. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to Implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan Includes:

5.12.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

5.12.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

5.12.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

IK
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02 Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 5
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6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding Subsection 5.13., to read:

5.13. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

5.13.1. Invoicing:

5.13.2. Funding restrictions; and

5.13.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on
09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788; FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326, and as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA
#93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to;

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02 Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Contractor Initials
8/27/2021

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 Date
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5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable
expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be used for light
snacks, not to exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for

clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses \Mthin the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need

to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 11, to
read:

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 12, to
read:

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
including failure to submit required monthly and/or quarterly reports.

12. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #2, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

•DS

H
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02 Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Contractor Initials
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/2/2021

Date

C—OecuSigncd by:
fwc

-ED0[>05BCMCe3442...

Name:'''"-''*
Title: Director

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

S/27/2021

Date

>OoeuSlgn«d by:

•7COOA32ie83C421.

Name" pennon
Title: Executive Director

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02

A-S-I.C

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■DoeuSlgntd by:

9/3/2021 J. (jjji^OfLur AlAKsluitL
.DMCUSaEaOOi^Qt

Date Name:^- Christopher Marshall
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

I

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;
Title:

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02 Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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Budgat Pactod: SPY 22 9raQ/21-«nOR2

_Je«a^Promo^o^ Contractor Shara I Match

Lkia Ram

Fundad try OHHS contiact ahaia
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Board Ejparaaa
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J. Oca^ancr
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S>eaeriptlofie
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GREATER TILTON AREA \

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New l-lanipshire on

October 09, 2015. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretaiy- of State's ofllce have been received and is

in good standing as far as this ofllce is concerned.

Business ID; 733566

Certificate Number: 0005379301

u.

o
fe)

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of June A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Sccretar>' of State
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FAMfLY
RESOURCE CENTER

MAmOffKt

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

5 Prospect Street

Tilton, New Hampshire 03276

603-286-4255

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY I, Donna Toomey, hereby certify that: I, Donna Toomey

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly
called and held on August 26, 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting. August 26, 2021: That Michelle J. Lennon, Executive Director of the Greater Tilton Area Family
Resource Center is duly authorized on behalf of The Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments
and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or
necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any lirhits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the
corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated
herein.

August 26, 2021

'rmmn / (Jt)

Signature of Elected Officer

Name:

Donna Toomey, Board President

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center
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/\c:oRC>'

GREATIL-OI

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LCQONEY

DATE (MM/DOmnfY)

8/25/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:' If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsements).

PRODUCER

A W Frost Agency, Inc.
354 Central Street
Franklin, NH 03235

CONTACT
NAME:

rSo, Exi): (603) 934-3319 no):(603) 934-7227

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A: Mount VemoH Fire Insurance

INSURED

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center
5 Prospect St
Tilton, NH 03276

INSURER B: Prooressive Insurance Grouo 24252

INSURER c:Wesco Insursnce Comoanv

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB. TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL
MSQ.

SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MMfPomrYY)

POLICY exp
IMM/OD/YYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE. | X | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

NPP2567856C 2/1/2021 2/1/2022
DAMAGE TO RENTED
j;SEMlS£SiEa.occu[f,encfl).

MEO EXP (Any ofW Wfsool

PERSONAL &ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIE^S PER:

□ locPOLICY Q ji
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000
100,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

.(Ea-accMepD.
1,000,000

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

00943918-4 7/24/2021 1/24/2022

ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

aOTO;

BODILY INJURY (Per DWSOnI

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenO
roOPERTY DAMAGE
iPy aecidentT

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERCXECUTIVE

Ifyss. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N WWC3519713 4/2/2021 4/2/2022

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

100,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
100,000

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonal Remarks Schedule, may be aitached If more space Is required)
Hired & Non-Owned Liability included in General Liability limits.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement:

The purpose of Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center is to strengthen and
empower individuals, families, and the community by promoting health, well-
being, and self-sufficiency through positive relationships, support, collaboration,

and education.
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3:48 PM Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

05/11/21 Summary Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2020

Dec 31, 20

ASSETS

Current Assets

Ctiecklng/Savlngs 234,064.68
Accounts Receivable 1,000.00

Other Current Assets 118,939.54

' Total Current Assets 354,004.22

Fixed Assets 367,809.30

Other Assets 2,500.00

TOTAL ASSETS 724,313.52

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 16,676.97
Other Current Liabilities 106,310.34

Total Current Liabilities 122,987.31

Long Term Liabilities ' 193,380.30

Total Liabilities 316,367.61

Equity 407,945.91

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 724,313.52

Page 1
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1:11 PM Greater Tilton Area Famliy Resource Center

05/11/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through December 2020

Jan - Dec 20

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

NHCENP 411.23

Ganite Corp Pay 13.100.00

Fitup Costs for Rental 929.00

Rental Income 1.080.00

Doorway Reimbursement 640.00

Data Stipend 2.029.90

Recovery Coach Sessions 8,031.12

Grant Revenue

ACERT Grant Revenue 16.433.67

PDG/UNH Grant 29.521.69

Child Care Aware of NH Grant 11.650.00

PDG - Children's Trust 42,495.10

Linden Foundation 42.000.00

DHHS Equipment Grant 1.528.57

Franklin Expansion Grant 156.017.29

Kinship-2 Contract 29.379.87

CONTRACT 1 - PRSS 259.373.67

CONT 2 • STR . PARENT LEADERS 90.802.40

CONTRACT #3 ■ Workforce ■ 70.764.68

Contract M • STR Carryover 5,874.89.

Winnesquam 23.135.60

Kinship Contract 36.242.77

Covid Staff Coverage at Dube Ct 102.931.92

Teleheaith Grant. 22,511.90

Total Grant Revenue 940,664.02

Donations 14.413.54

Foundations Grant

Fidelity Charitable Grant 5,000.00

Children's Auction 15,000.00

The Linden Foundation Grant 15,000.00 .

Total Foundations Grant 35.000.00

Medicaid 14,037.61

Miscellaneous income 800.00

NHCF 27,500.00

Peer Support Income 269.46

Training Income
Harm Reduction 522.24

FRC Training Scholarships 150.00

SOQ Training 382.00

Training income. 11,922.43

Parent Cafe Training 233.88

Recovery Coach Income 845.14

2-Gen 150.00

Total Training Income 14.205.69

Total Income 1.073,111.57

Gross Profit 1.073,111.57

Expense

Garbage Removal 22.50

Recovery Support 629.96

Inspection Fee 250.00

Property Taxes 6,000.94

Mortgage interest 355.61

Franklin Expansion 2,340.70

Advertising and Promotion 30.99

Page 1
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1:11 PM Greater Tilton Area Famliy Resource Center

05/11/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through December 2020

Jan - Dec 20

Automobile Expense
Registration 224.20

fuel. 1,034.75

Total Automobile Expense 1,258.95

Bank Service Charges 64.60

Child Care 2,235.00

Color Copier

Color Copier - Capital Purchase 13.440.70
Color Copier - Other 5,305.54

Total Color Copier 18,746.24

Communication/Technology 18,143.00
Computer and internet Expenses
Laptop and Desktop Computers 6,221.13

Computer and internet Expenses - 0... 13.948.98

Total Computer and Internet Expenses 20,170.11

Contract Labor

Fiscal Manager 30,000.00
Accounting 4,767.86
Bookkeeping 8,128.40

Non*Profit Management 14,500.00

Contract Labor - Other 4,800.00

Total Contract Labor 62,196.26

Due & Subscriptions 840.98

Equipment/Office Furniture 23,965.99
Food 1,133.04
Gas Cards 1,383.15

Insurance Expense
Construction Insurance 189.00

Automobile Insurance 2,369.00
Liability Insurance 2,979.00

Workers Comp 7,807.59
Insurance Expense • Other 4,938.00

Total Insurance Expense 18,282.59

interest Expense 2,868.15

License/Filing Pees 337.00

Marketing/Outreach 9,495.21

Meals and Entertainment .  32.94
Membership 1,339.96

Mileage & Travel 11,852.86
Miscellaneous Expense 3,984.33

Office Supplies 1,809.71
Outside Maintenance 1.545.39

Parent Education Trainers 1,680.00

Payroll
Medical Insurance 19,032.83

Page 2
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1:11 PM Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

05/11/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through December 2020

Jan • Dec 20

Wages
Data Entry 12.529.90
Early Childhood Educator 12,000.00
Specialist 13,523.50

Recovery Coach Wages 14,835.00
Executive Director Salary 53,686.15
Assistant Director 48,760.00

Covid 19 • Dut>e Center Wages 97,299.17
Employment Specialist 42,400,00
FSS 20,998.50
Kinship Wages 9,082.50

Office Manager 23,143.66
Parent Educator 16,778.15

Transportation Manager 46,640.00
TRSS Manager 42,400.00
Wages ■ Other -7,034.00

Total Wages 447,042.53

Payroll Taxes
ER Fractional Adjustment -0.53
ER Medicare, 6,570.92

ER Social Security. 28,116.88
SUTA Taxes 3,565.59

Payroll Taxes • Other -538.00

Total Payroll Taxes 37,714.86

Total Payroll 503,790.22

Peer Resources 12,804.14

Permit 150.00

Postage and Delivery 365.86
Processing Fees 42.24
Professional Fees

Legal Services 1,509.00
Professional Fees • Other 1.279.75

Total Professional Foes 2,788.75

Rent Expense 32,500.00
Repairs and Maintenance

Capital Improvements 22,197.40

Repairs and Maintenance • Other 4,217.32

Total Repairs and Maintenance 26,414.72

Staff Development 814.45
Stipends

Other Stipends 500.00

Cell Phone Stipends 3,270.04

Total Stipends 3,770.04

Supplies 11,389.81
Telephone/Internet Expense 8,523.63

TRAINING

TRAINING. 2,150.00
2-Gen Training -1,000.00
TRAINING - Other 10,315.50

Total TRAINING 11,465.50

Training Consultant 400.00

Page 3
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1:11 PM

05/11/21

Accrual Basis

Greater Tiltoh Area Famiiy Resource Center

Profit & Loss
January through December 2020

Jan • Dec 20

Utilities

Electricity

on

Water/Sewer

>4 iUtllltles • Other

Total Utilities

Website Management

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

694.41

4,898.23
446.53

2,552.19

8.591.36

56.03

836,862.91

236,248.66

236,248.66

Page 4
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1:13 PM

05/11/21

Greater Tilton Area Famliy Resource Center

Statement of Cash Flows
January through December 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

Gift Cards for Participants

Real Estate Tax Escrow

Prepaid Expenses.:Prepald Utilities

Prepaid Expenses.:Prepald Telephone Expense
Prepaid Expenses.:Prepald Insurance
Prepaid Expenses.:Prepald Rent
Grant Recelvabie:PDG • Children's Trust Rec.

Grant Receivabie:ACERT Grant Receivable

Grant Receivabie:Franklln Expansion Grant.

Grant Receivabie:Klnship-2 Contract
Grant Receivabie:Grant 1 - PRSS

Grant Receivabie:Grant 2 • Parent Ed

Grant Recelvabie:Grant #3 • Workforce

Grant Recelvabie:Grant UA • STR

Grant Recelvabie:Wlnnlsquam Grant Receivable
Grant Recelvabie:kln8hlp Contract.
Accounts Payable
Pre-Pald Children's Trust Grant

Pro-Paid Linden Foundation Gran

Payroll Protection Loan
Payroll Llabllitie8:Accrued Wages
Payroll Liabilities:EE Federal Income Tax
Payroll Liabllities:EE Medicare
Payroll Llabllities:EE Social Security
Payroll Llabllities:ER Medicare
Payroll LiabIlities:ER Social Security
Payroll Llablllties:SUTA Taxes Payble

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

175 Central Street, Franklin, N

175 Central StreeL Franklin, N:Constructlon • 175 Central.
175 Central StreeL Franklin, N:Settlement Charges
Internet/Computer Setup

Furniture and Equipment

Net cash provided by Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Mortgage -175 Central Street

Net cash provided by Financing Activities

Net cash Increase for period

Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period

Jan - Dec...

236.248.66

•210.00

-980.10

-394.33

116.51

156.77

2,500.00

-8,115.60

-16,433.67
-39,517.33

-2,187.48
1,578.57

-14,037.78

8,253.13
239.02

1,672.68
-1,458.52

15,377.36

-1,567.00

42,000.00

49,000.00
-7,572.00

4,254.77

623.02

2,664.40
617.57

2,661.17

1,008.09

276,497.91

-157,500.00

-168,709.03

-6,140.50

-5,000.00

-3,435.00

-340,784.53

193,380.30

193,380.30

129,093!68

104,971.00

234,054.68

Page 1
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GTAFRC Board of Directors 2020

Address Affiliation Office Year

elected

Term#

Donna

Toomey ■
Navigator

Outreach

Coordinator

President 2015 2016-2017|
;2018-2019.

E020^202']|

Lisa Tremblay RN Vice-

president

2018 2018-2019

2022-2023'

Brad Davis

■
Attorney Secretary 2018 2018-2019

2022-2023

Cynthia Cook Health First

Triage Nurse

Treasurer 2015 2016-2017j
2018-2019.

Pat Tucker

1
LADC 2016 :2017-2018

b019-202d
2021-2022

Scott A.

Burns School

2015 2016-2017j
2018-2019.

[2020-2023]

Nancy

Nemcovich

■
LADC 2018 2018-2019.

^020-20211
2022-2023'

Nicole

Bobbins

Housing

Specialist

2018 2018-2019.

^020-2021
2022-2023
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Summary of Qualifications:
•  Self-Motivated, able to set priorities to achieve immediate and iong-term goals and meet operational deadlines.

■  • Proven Interpersonal skills, cooperative team player, yet equally effective, motivated, and hard working Independently.

Employment Experience:

2002-2019

Practice Manager/Concord Hospital

Established positive relationships with Providers.

Mentor and support development of other practice leaders.

Recruit, retain and develop staff and manage performance.

Monitor annual department productivity, quality, fiscal goals and staffing.

Responsible for customer relations and customer service initiatives.

Support departmental and organizational change.

Ensure compliance with Stale, Local. Federal regulatory requirements.

2000-2002

Office Manager/Account Representative/GIG Physician Services

•  Manage day-to-day operations in support of clients to include input of data, daily claims submission, accounting, and report

generation. Includes the management of employees.

•  Establish timeframes and expectations in the implementation of new business. Set up client data base and establish

appropriate work functions to meet client needs and contractual terms.

•  Generate reporting on a daily and monthly basis. Meet with clients to review reports and accounts receivable.

•  Act as a liaison between GIG PS and Client Office Mangers and/or Physicians.

•  Provide feedback to client regarding updates in billing procedures and requirements.

1993-2000

Provider Relations Representatlve/Healthsource, NH/CIGNA Healthcare of NH

•  Act as an external liaison between Healthsource/Cigna and provider network for representation of CIGNA policy, procedure,

and philosophy.

•  Prepared and presented educational overview for audiences ranging in size from one to three hundred.

•  Serviced assigned territory that consisted of Primary Care Physicians, Specialists and Hospitals.

•  Met with lop 20% of physician practices, both primary and specialty, at least twice yearly.

•  Reviewed and educated assigned territory on clinical efficiency reporting, incentive programs and disease management

recommendations.

•  Maintained all follow up standards for all verbal, written and face to face interactions.

Awards & Acknowledgements:

STAR Award, 2005, Concord Hospital

Quality Achievement Award, 2000, CIGNA HeallhCare of NH

Circle of Excellence Award, 2000, CIGNA HeallhCare of NH

Circle of Excellence Award, 1999, CIGNA HeallhCare of NH

Award of Excellence, 1989, Chubb Life/America

Extraordinary Customer Relations - Skills and Strategies, 1996
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Wendy Hanley
Laconia, NH | 603-520-1629 | whanIey@gta-(TC.org

Objective

•  To work to outreach to and support individuals in my community who are experiencing homelessness.

Experience

WORKFORCE EMPLOYMENT SPECIALIST / RECOVERY COACH | GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY
RESOURCE CENTER | OCTOBER 2019 - CURRENT

•  Specializing In supporting participants in recovery towards seeking and sustaining employment.

•  Provide ongoing support for employees in need of recovery resources.

•  Acts as a resource to support management staff and employees.

SHELTER SUPPORT STAFF | THE DUBE SHELTER | APRIL 2020 - CURRENT

•  Ensure individuals who must isolate or quarantine and who are homeless in the state of New
Hampshire, follow and comply with COVID-19 protocols.

MEDICAL RECORDS COORDINATOR | HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER | NOVEMBER 2013 -
SEPTEMBER 2019

•  Process medical records requests, ensuring mandated HIPPA protocols were in place.

•  Initiating conversations with providers and follow up with high needs patients regarding their
medical record requests.

Education

CCAR RECOVERY COACH ACADEMY I 2019

•  Related coursework: Certified Recovery Support Worker

HIGHSCHOOL DIMPLOMA | 1983 1 LACONIA HIGH SCHOOL

Trainings

WORKING WITH FAMILIES FACING ADDICTION

MEN & TRAUMA: BREAKING THE SILENCE

TRAUMA: AN ESSENTIAL COMPONENT OF WOMEN'S SERVICES

ADVERSE EFFECTS: ANXIETY, ADDICTION, AND PANDEMIC LIFE

PROMOTING HEALTHY TEEN RELATIONSHIPS WITH GENERATION Z

ADDICTION INTERVENTION: THE "LOVE FIRST" WAY
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WOMEN, SUBSTANCE USE AND TRAUMA: CREATING COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES

VETERANS AND SUBSTANCE USE: RESOURCE AT THE READY

STANDARDS OF QUALITY FOR FAMILY STRENGTHENING & SUPPORT

Community Engagement

HARM REDUCTION - COMMUNITY OF PRACTICE

TRAUMA INFORMED CARE - COMMUNITY OF PRACTICE

HOMELESS COALITION MEETINGS

VOLUNTEER AT ISAIAH CAVt - LACONIA NH

•  Made community dinners for those accessing the cafd; these individuals are experiencing
homelessness and are able to access bathroom feciJities, clothing, and food at this location.
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Nichole LaFrazIa

Bristol, NH

Work Experience

Assistant Call Center Manager
Duncraft • Concord, NH

October 2017 to Present

Process orders by mall and telephone

Correspond with potential and existing customers via phone, email, and Instant chat

Resolve order issues or questions via phone, email, and instant chat

Back office support with inventory, shipments, promotions, fraud detection, etc.

Filing claims with FedEx regarding shipping issues

Daily use of Microsoft Outlook, Excel, and Word

Medical Bllier and Coder

CONCORD EYE CENTER - Concord. NH

January 2011 to May 2017

Precisely completed appropriate claims paperwork, documentation and system entry.
Thoroughly researched newly Identified diagnoses and/or medical procedures to expand skills and
knowledge.

Maintained updated knowledge of coding requirements.

Verified patients' eligibility and claims status with Insurance agencies.
Diligently filed and followed up on third party claims.

Determined prior authorizations for medication and outpatient procedures.
Researched CPT and ICD-10 coding discrepancies for compliance and reimbursement accuracy.
Maintained strict patient and physician confidentiality.

Resourcefully used various coding books and procedure manuals.

Actively maintained current working knowledge of CPT and ICD-10 coding principles, government
regulation, protocols and third party requirements regarding billing.
Conscientiously reviewed medical record information to Identify appropriate coding based on CMS HCC
categories.

Interacted with providers and other medical professionals regarding billing and documentation policies,
proc^ures and regulations.
Submitted electronic/paper claims documentation for timely filing.

Responded to correspondence from ihsura'nce companies.
Posted and adjusted payments frorn insurance companies.

Identified and resolved patient billing and payment Issues.

Confidently and adeptly handled claim denials and/or appeals.

Examined patients' Insurance coverage, deductlbles, possible insurance carrier payments and remaining
balances not covered under their policies when applicable.

Updated patient financial information to guarantee accuracy.

Shift Supervisor
Yankee Candle Company - Tilton. NH
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September 2009 to January 2011

Managed wide variety of customer service and administrative tasks to resolve customer issues quickly
and efficiently.

Recipient of multiple positive reviews acknowledging dedication to excellent customer service,
education

Ensured superior customer experience by addressing customer concerns, demonstrating empathy and
resolving problems on the spot.

Store Manager
Perfumania - Tilton, NH
March 2006 to September 2009

Operated a PCS system to itemize and complete customer purchases.
Built long-term customer relationships and advised customers on purchases and promotions.
Investigated and resolved customer inquiries and complaints In a timely and empathetic manner.
Bagged, boxed or gift-wrapped sold merchandise per customer's request,
Recommended, selected and helped locate product based on customer requests.
Greeted customers entering the store to ascertain what each customer wanted or needed.
Routinely answered customer questions regarding merchandise and pricing.
Recipient of multiple positive reviews acknowledging dedication to excellent customer service.
Managed wide variety of customer service and administrative tasks to resolve customer issues quickly
and efficiently

Education

High school or equivalent
Pembroke Academy

Skills

• Customer Service (10+ years)

• Call Center (3 years)

• Microsoft Excel (7 years)

• Customer Service/Support (10+ years)

• Microsoft Word (7 years)

• ICD-9

• CPT Coding

• Insurance Verification

• ICD-10

• Medical Billing

• CPT Coding

• ICD-10

• ICD-9

• Insurance Verification
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• Medical Billing

• Medical Codlngr

•  ICD Coding

• Medical Office Experience

• Accounts Receivable

Additional Information

References available upon request
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Michelle J. (Blais Betts) Lennon,

Education

Post Graduate Studies-Doctorate of Biblical Counseling (currently enrolled In the Doctoral program) Evangelical
Theo logical Seminary 2011-2017, MA of Ministry completed 2015

Bachelor of Arts-History, Minor In Women's Studies The University of Massachusetts, Dartmouth 1992

Extensive Training In Family Supports and Peer Recovery Supports (see partial listing)

Experience

CURRENT:

Pastor, Northfield-Tllton Congregational Church

Executive Director, Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

Board Member, Healthflrst Family Care Center

Trainer for the Connecticut Recovery Coach Academy

Trainer for Telephone Recovery Supports

Trainer for All Recovery Meeting Facilitator

Trainer for Supporting Families Affected by SUD

Trainer for Supporting Pregnant and Parenting Women Affected by SUD

Leadership Team Member- Partners In Prevention (Partnership for Public Health- Winnipesaukee Region)

Leadership Team Member-Wlnnlsquam System of Care

Founding Consultant, Steering Committee, Finance Committee, Publicity & Programming oversight, Greater Tllton
Area Family Resource Center

Program Facilitator/Community Collaborations

Certified Application Consultant

Certified Parent Educator-Nurturing Skills, Parents as Teachers, Active Parenting

Certifted Celebrate Recovery Facilitator
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Family Resource Center of Central NH, Laconla, NH May 2012 > May 2015

Family Support Specialist/Parent Educator/Welcome Baby Program Coordinator/Home Visiting New Hampshire

Primary Home Visitor/Step Ahead Comprehensive Family Support/Hot Button Counseling Trainer/Home Visiting

Protocols PC Domestic Violence

Northfleld-Tllton Congregational Church

Pastor

January 1,2014 - present

Community/Civic Activities

Community of Practice for Early Education Preschool through 1** Grade

Early Childhood Coalition Greater Tllton Area

Board of Directors, HealthFlrst Family Care Center (Franklin, Laconla NH)

Partners in Prevention Leadership Team, Winnipesaukee Region

2016-Present

201&-Present

2015-Present

2015-Pre$cnt

Featured Speaker, Children's Policy Summit What About the Children, the Forgotten Victims of the Opioid Crisis

November 2016

Missions Coordinator, Team Leader, San Jose Adentro, Dominican Republic

Artistic Roots Community Roots Award Recipient

July 2005-2011

2008

Training and Professional Skills

Recent Trainings in:

Connect Suicide Prevention Training, 2/J6

Recovery Coach Academy Train the Trainers, 5/16

Medically Supported Sobriety 6/16 Lakes Region Recovery Clinic 6/16

Ethical Concerns of Recovery Coaches 2day Training 6/16

CAPRES Certification Two Day Orientation 10/16

CRSW Requirement Training 10/16

Connect Community Response after Sudden Death or Suicide 11/2016

The Standards ofQualityfor Resource Centers Informational Session 12/16

Telephone Recovery Supports-Trainer 2017

Recovery Basicsfor Parents-Facilitator

Volunteer Orientation to Community Recovery Centers-Trainer 2017
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tot Positive Solutions for Families Trainer of Facilitators 1/2018
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Hilary Stark
Laconia, NH | 603t581-8513 | hstark@gta-frc.org

Objective
•  To work to outreach to and support individuals in my community who are experiencing homelessncss.

Experience

CERTIFIED RECOVERY SUPPORT WORKER / KINSHIP NAVIGATOR I GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY
RESOURCE CENTER | APRIL 2020 - CURRENT

• Work with individuals and their families to remove personal and environmental obstacles to
recovery, support the establishment of connections to the recovery community, and support
individual's recovery goals.

SHELTER SUPPORT STAFF | THE DUBE SHELTER | APRIL 2020 - CURRENT

•  Ensure individuals who must isolate or quarantine and who are homeless in the state of New
Hampshire, follow and comply with COVID-19 protocols.

CRSW IN TRAINING | AMERICORPS | JANUARY 2020 - JUNE 2020

•  Engaged In paid training to earn CRSW certification, by offering peer mentoring and helping
participants to connect with community resources.

Education

BUILDING FUTURES TOGETHER PROGRAM - UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

•  18-21 month program for paraprofessionals to provide specialized care coordination to children,
youth, and their caregivers Impacted by opioid use disorders, and other substance use disorders.

•  January 2021 to Current

LAKES REGION COMMUNITY COLLEGE - 2011

•  Major: Social Work

HIGHSCHOOL DIPLOMA - 2010

Trainings

STANDARDS OF QUALITY FOR FAMILY STRENGTHENING & SUPPORT

MEN & TRAUMA: BREAKING THE SILENCE

REORIENTING ANGER TO PROMOTE HEALING

SMART RECOVERY - FACILITATOR/FAMILY & FRIENDS TRAINING
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Trainings - Continued

51" NE SCHOOL OF ADDICTION AND PREVENTION STUDIES - 25 ECUS:

SUPPORTING YOUNG PEOPLE IMPACTED BY THE OPIATE CRISIS

MENTAL WELLNESS FOR RECOVERY COACHES

DESCALATION AND ENGAGMENT STRATEGIES: A TRAUMA INFORMED APPROACH

PROVENTION & ETHICS

HARM REDUCTION.

Community Engagement

HARM REDUCTION - COMMUNITY OF PRACTICE

TRAUMA INFORMED CARE - COMMUNITY OF PRACTICE

HOMELESS COALITION MEETINGS

VOLUNTEER AT ISAIAH CA?t - LACONIA NH

•  Made community dinners for those accessing the caf^; these individuals are experiencing
homelessness and are able to access bathroom facilities, clothing, and food at this location.
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Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

Key Personnel

SFY22 09/30/2021-06/30/2022

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Fabiano, Susan Office Manager $20,800.00 15.00% $2,340.00
Hanley, Wendy Workforce Specialist $42,432.00 100.00% $31,824.00

LaPranzia, Nichole Grants Administrative Assistant $31,200.00 15.00% $3,510.00
Lennon, Michelle Executive Director $65,000.00 10.00% $4,875.00
Stark, Hillary Recovery Coach $41,600.00 50.00% $15,600.00
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Greater Ulton Area Family Resource Center

Key Personnel

SFY23 07 01 2022-09 29 2022

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Fabiano, Susan Office Manager $20,800.00 15.00% $780.00

Haniey, Wendy Workforce Specialist $42,432.00 100.00% $10,608.00

LaFranzia.'Nichole Grants Administrative Assistant $31,200.00 15.00% $1,170.00

Lennon, Michelle Executive Director $65,000.00 10.00% $1,625.00 '

Stark, Hillary Recovery Coach $41,600.00 50.00% $5,200.00
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Lert A. SbiblBCite

Cocnmbsioaer

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH,

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271.9544 1.800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov

December 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $204,962 from
$333,974.46 to $538,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2020 to
September 29, 2021 effective retroactive to September 29, 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

' The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater Tilton

Area Family
Resource

Center.
Tilton/NH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$138,740 $88,323 $227,063

0: 08/14/19,
Item #10 '

Granite

Pathways,
Concord/NH

228900-

8001
Statewide $195,234.48 $116,639 $311,873.48

0: 09/18/19,
Item #19

Total: $333,974.48 $204,962 $538,936.48

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

Tht Deportment of Health and Human Seruket'Mutton it to Join communitiet'ond familiei
in providing opportuniliei for cilitent to achieve health and independence..
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because sufficient funds tn State Fiscal Year 2021 were not
available In the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) In approving New
Hampshire's requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the
state appropriations were deferred.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide vocational training supports and
workforce readiness programs for individudls with Opioid Use Disorders who are in treatment and
recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or rejoin the workforce. Employment has long
been recognized as a critical element in the recovery process, providirrg people with hope and
opportunity to move forward in the recovery process determined by principles of self-
determination.

Approximately 100 individuals will be served from September 29,2020 to September 29,
2021.

This vendors will continue Intiegrating workforce readiness programming Into treatment
and recovery settings, Including creating vocational profiles In order to determine an Individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendors will link tKe individual to
appr;oprlat6 vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid
the individual on the path to employment. Vocational training may Include, but Is not limited to.
assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and Improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, which
will be collected in coordination wHh the Regional Dooiways. The State Opioid Response grant
requires that all Individuals served receive a comprehensive assessment at several t'me Inten/als,
specrficaliy at Intake, six (6) months after Intake, and upon discharge. Through collaborative
agreements wHh the vendors under these contracts, the Regional Doorways gather data on clientr
related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice involvement, employment, and
housing needs at the time intervals listed above. The data collected enables the Department to
measure short and long-term outcomes associated with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives
and to determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using the following performance
measures;

• The Contractors will ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided
training progranis.

•  The Contractors will ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuats gain
employment.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements fonup to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals In
recovery seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities vrauld have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93788, FAIN #11081685 and FAIN #71083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

OS-9$-«2-920S10-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HKS;

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF BUREAU OF DRUG 6 ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOlO

RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Funds CFDA *93.768 FAIN H79TI081685 end K79TI083326

Greeter TItton Area Family Resource Center. TUtoiVNH Vendor#

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Sen/ices 92057040 5110,992 (540,911) $70,081
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 527,748 50 $27,748
2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057046 SO 529,234 $29,234
2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057048 50 566,667 $66,667

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 SO 533,333 $33,333
Sut> Total 5138,740 588,323 $227,063

Granite Psthvuovs. Cortcord/NH Vendor#

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Accouii Class Title Job Number Cunent Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 5149,896 (S77.213) $72,683
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 545,338 SO $45,338
2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057046 50 S43,852. 543,652

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 $100,000 $100,000
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 SO $50,000 $50,000

Sub Total 5195,234 $116,639 $311,873

I  Overall Totall $333.974! ■ $204,9621 • $536.9361

Anactimtffl - Burtau of Behavioral Heahh

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals
with OUD Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with
a place of business at 5 Prospect St, Tilton. NH 03276.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18. 2019, (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Fonn P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2. Renewal, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the (Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisioris. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, .to read:

$227,063.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3. Reporting, by adding Subsection 3.2. to read:

3.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4. Performance Measures, by adding Subsection
4.4. to read:

4.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
Improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services. Section 5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
to read:

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

5.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

5.1.1. Establishes formal informatton sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways
for substance use sen/ices that comply with all applicable confidentiality lasvs,
including 42 CFR Part 2.

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1 InHlatsj
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 1 of 1 Date 17/7/70?Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

5.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department svithin sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds
.  ̂ and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA

requirements.

5.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling In public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will,
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

5.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shalLaccept clients on Medicaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to f^T on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

5.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

5.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

5.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department. Stale of NH. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

5.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

5.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

5.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders.

5.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

5.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

5.12., The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terrns and conditions including, but not
limited to:

5.12.1. Invoicing:

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01 Page2 of5 Dale l?/4/2Q?Q

H
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

5.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

5.12.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-1 by reducing the total budget amount by $40.911, of which $29,234 is identified
as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21
(September 30, 2020 through December 31. 2020). as specified in Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1
NCE and for SFY21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) in the amount of $11,677, as
specified in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 SOR II.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 NCE. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 SOR II. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Greater Tillon Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1 Contractor Iniliais

•09

H
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date 12/4/202Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective^September 30.2020, upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.
1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/4/2020

Date

•Oecu9>gn«d by:

Name:

Title: Director

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

12/4/2020

Date

y—DocwSlQAatf by:

MamoMiChelle LeiName;'^^'^^®' Lennon

Title: Executive Director

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 4 of 5



OocuSign Envelope ID; BC3CC3A4-F6D(ME19-A4A9-5609A4946835

OocuSign Envelope 10: 0FlDO4BE-496A419A-95El-4g807Fe4959C

New Hampshire Department otHealth and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

U/11/2020

eaeAJMieiipwe-. r
ust© * Name: Catherine Pinos

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment

RFP-2019.BDAS-12-WORKF.01-Abl Page 5 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Oploid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,

by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded

on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2

CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR

§200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2". Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows; •

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) scheduie.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,

charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
—M

GroatOfTlton Area Family Resource Center 6 Amendmenum Contractor Iniiiats

RFP-2019-BOAS-12-WORKF^2.A01 Page1ol4 Oa,e 12/4/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
QUO

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment, invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking terhplales, which are available to the

Department upon request. n

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to .purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

' HGfesler nUoo Area Family Resource Cenler Ejtftibil B Amendment Cof>tractof Initials

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01 Page 20(4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial informaUon as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding requirements.

• 12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A. Amendment #3,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the.price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both

parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

HGreater Tilton Area Family Resource Cerler Exhibit B Amendment 01 Contractor Initials |

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01 PaoeSoTt ' Date 1-^/^2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department If any of the

following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200. during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days

after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
Independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

HGreater TOion Area FamDy Resourco Cenler E)diibit B Amendment 01 Contractor Inlliala
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JtlTrry A. Meytn
CemoloJoMr

, KjiJb&Fpi,
Olmlar

STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/yJS/O/^fOJi BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

IIJPLEASANTSTREET.CONCORD.NH 63301
603-27I PS44 I400-8S2O345 CiL 9S44

Fii; (03<27I-43J2 TOD Acccu; l-000<73S-2964 www.dbh>.Bh'.fov

July23. 2019 ^

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
anid the Honorable Council

Stale House.
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavorial Health, to enter into
dQreement with Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center (Vendor # 297434-R001), 5 Prospect St
-Tilton. NH 03276, in an amount not to exceed $138,740, to provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training,Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder, effective upon date of Governor and Council
approval, through September 29. 2020,. .100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
' Vendor

Number
Location Contract Amount

t

Greater Tilton Area

Family Resource Center
297434-R001 5 Prospect St.

Tilton, NH 03276
$138,740

Total; $138,740

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget OfHce, if needed and justified.

0S-95-92-9205i 0-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

-  2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $110,992

2021 102-500731. Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $27,748

Total: $138,740
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

'  EXPLANATrON

The purpose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational training supports
and workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settings who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. Employment has long been recognized as
a critical element In the recovery process, providing people with hope and opportunity to move forward
in the recovery process Utat is determined by principles of self-determination.

This request represents one (1) of two (2) anticipated contracts to provide vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs. The Department anticipates awarding one (1) more
contract at the next available Governor and Executive Council meeting, upon receipt of the fully executed
contract documents.

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SCR) grant opportunity. New Hampshire
will use evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery, and prevention services to individuals
with CUD in NH. These critical funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping
individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and stem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017.
NH had 488 opioid-related deaths. 2.774 emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6.684
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 individuals per 100.000 population. The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which identified gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with ODD. The services provided through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate connections with the multiple workforce initiatives for individuals with SUD/OUD that have
emerged over the, past two years, including the Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace Program and
the Department of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

This agreement will require the vendor to integrate workforce readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendor will link the individual to appropriate
vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to assistance with resume Virriting,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, which will
be collected in coordination with the Regional Hubs that were approved by Governor and Executive
Council at the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SCR grant requires that all individuals served receive a
comprehensive assessment at several time Intervals, specifically at intake.^.six (6) months and upon
discharge. Through collaborative agreements with the vendor under this contract, the Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including: recovery status, criminal justice
Involvement, employment,*and housing needs at the time inleivals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short arid long-term outcornes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating ̂ he t>est results for the clients served.

Approximately one hundred (100) individuals will be served from Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29. 2020.

This vendor was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services* web site from November 15.
2018 through December 13, 2018. in addition, a notice was sent by email to a wide variety of
stakeholders and potential vendors. The Department received four (4) proposals. The proposals were
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CourtcD
Page 3 of 3

Summary is attached.

As referenced In the Request tor Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council..

Should the Governor ar>d Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
se.eking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are chtical components of an individual's ability to remain in
recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFOA #93.788. FAIN TI081665)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
not-be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

mrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Dtpailmtnl cf Hioltkend Strvictt'UiniQn u to jo'm tcmmunitiii end /bniliri
in providingofiportunilitt for tidtent fifo/lA onri inJtptttdrnti.
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WofMorta Rvcdbm* end VoceUonel TrtMng'
prognme for tndhrldate vtm OpJchJ |>m

Oteofder

RFPNemo

New Hampshire Department of. Health and Human Services
.Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

RFP-2019-80AS-12<W0RKP

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Bidder Name PBBt/Fefl

DSsiffnmn

PolntB

Actual

Points
2.

QreatarTilton Area Family Resource Center TfiO 689 .  "3-

^ He8dro«t,!nc. 760 618
4.'

Orantte Psthwaye. Inc. 780 863
5.

FemOy Resource Center at Gorham 760 443
6.
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z'FORM NUMBCB POT (vtnteo S/8/1S)
Subject Wmtfbttg Rce^ng; ft YPWIl'""* TralmnP Pmemmi fte Ib^OAfrll-WORKf^

Mmlcfl; TUi iircemem ud ill ofbs tflechmcenihilibeecmi public opoeiebmWooto Oevemofeed
ExecuiJve OouncI) tat approvii. Any (nfomailon ihd li privite, CDnfitoiUI or pnipridciy must
be cittriy tdcmlftcd to the e|eacy cad igteed lolfl «rrtti&8 prior to d|Ain8 ibe ccoinct

ACReEMBKT
The Sate ofNew Kenpsbbo end (he Cbetraoar hereby reutusJty a^ree *s foUswK

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDPmPICATION.

,1.1 Siete AgoKy Narae
NH OcpemnestofHeillhend Hum en Sc/viea

I.] Sate Agency Addiu
139 Plceeeet Street

CoaootA NH 0)30IOtS7

IJ ContrmctDr Ncfflc

Ofciur Tllion Arei Fmily Resource Center
1.4 Cootnaot Addros

SProipeclSl
TThOQ. HH 03376

1J Contractor Phone

' Number
603-2l6-4Uj

IA Aecouoi Nan^er

0S«S«M2091O>7O4O

1.7 Conplfftion Date

Spctember». 2030

I.I Price Umitatlon

2131.740

1.9 Contnctlag Oflker Cor State Agency
Ncihia Ot White, Dfrcetor
Bums of Cefitraca and Procurement

1.10 State AgerKy Tetcphone Number
60M7I.963I

(.11 Coetraaor Slgnarvra..

(LkC^ffOfuA.
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor SiQfiitery

dynH^ia CookjlreoSortr
Ml Adtnowiedgemeni: Sutaof yCS? .Countyof 0Qyf^Cifi

, before the undenlgncd ofTteer, personally appeared ihc,
provcrt 10 be ibe person whose name Is ilgrted la block 1. 11, and aeluowkdicd thai a/he eaecutcd
IMtcatcdlnbtecfcl.il , § i IE .

parson Mtntlfled oVe^k2fiS<or(l

0  t BBUtLD C

y

1 \ Xr.ij^joio /l.ll.l SIgnatnie ofNotefy Poblie or Juftieteftbe Peace

i52!L~

' Notery Poblie or Juftiet of (be Pa

I.Ill NameandTitlcofNotaryeriustlceofthePcifie

p4-T^IC/li E3SA/m. .
1.14 Soua Agency Signature

leRK. Dcnirtflienior Administration. DivtsI

1.13 NameandTltleofStiteABcacySlgnatory

1.16 Appraeti by the RK.Dcpirtflienior Administration, DIvtstoe of PaAnld (^fepplUabk)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approvsl by tteAttoroey General (Form. Substartce and EKeeutteojf^rtPPficob/ej

^*—7^
I.II Approwl by (he QOvcrilor and Executive Council

Hr On:

Page I of4
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (vertion S/8/1S)
Subjeci; WflrhfOrtC RCTtiintH A VQgntignnl Tni'p'pg Pmcfunn for individuals with QUD/RFP.20I9.BDAS-I2.WORKF-Q7

Notice: This egreement end a!) of its ettachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
, Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, ccnfiderttial or proprieta/y must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and (he Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Stale Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Tilion Area Family Resource Center
1.4 Contractor Address

5 Prospect St
Tilton. NH 03276

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-286-4255

1.6 Account Number

297434.R00I

1.7 Completion Date

$peiember29.2020

1.8 Price Limitation

SI38.740 .

1.9 Contracting OfTicer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

I.I I Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

ua Cook J reQScjrer
1.13 Acknowledgement: Sine of , County of

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified ij'^tf^rY.'iy'n'^fe^tnrily
proven to be the person whose name Is signed in block 1. II, and acknowledged (hat s/he executed the eii^^ty
i N •ndicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

/

fSeaH

6*pinco
X) • ^

I  i

5  i XT. la^ 2010 / I

1.13.2 Name and Titleof Notary or Justice of the Peace

pA-r^/Cm BlSA/^iL . AjoTTf^
1.14 Slate Agency Signature

Dale:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.h. Depanment of Administration, Division of Persdmiel (If applicable)

By: Director, On:

1,17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and E.xeculion) (fapplicoble)

1.18 Approval by the ver or

By:

and Execuiiye Council (ifappUcabU)

On:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOWSERVICESTO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
conirsctor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more panlcularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A w^ich is incorporaled herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
,3.1 Notvnihsianding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless rx) such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shell become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to (he
' Effective Oaie, all Services performed by (he Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that (his Agreement docs not
become efrcciive, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitalion, any obligation to pay
(he Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by (he Completion Date'
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.'
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
controry, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availDbllity and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have (he right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
•giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract price/price limitation/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, lind terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B N^ich is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payrr)ent by the State of the contract price shall be (he
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature Incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7*c or any other provision ofiaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding luty provision In (his Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMErfT

OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, the.
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authoriiiei
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Controctor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opponuniiy
laws. This may include (he require^ni to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

. shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, (he Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by (he
regulations of the United States Depanment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
Implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulatioru and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall ot its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants (hat all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform (he Services, and shall be.propcrly
licensed and otherwise outhoriz^ to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise oulhorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, end for a period of six (6) months ofler the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Conirecior shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of (his

of 4

Contractor Initials

Date (o
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Agreement. ThU provision shnll survive lerminaiionorihis
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of (his Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

8. EVENT OF OEFAULT/RCMEOIES.
8.1 Anyone or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one. or rrtorc, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying' the Event
of Default and requiring ii to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event
of Default and suspending all paymenu to be made under this
Agreement and ordering (hat the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to (he Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that (he Contracior has cured (he Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
EveniorDefauli; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or In equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
Information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
file's, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reprtsductioni. drawings, artalyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, ■

all whether Hnished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he State or purchased with funds provided for thot purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shell be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of (his Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9 )>A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdaia
requires prior wrinen approvol of the State.

Page 3

10. termination. In (he event of en early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be Ideniicol to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of (his Agrtemeni the Contrttcior Is in alt
respects an independent contractor, end is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTiccn, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its ernployees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATlON/SUBCONTRACrS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior written notice and
consent of (he State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by (he Contractor without the pr'ior written
notice and consent of the Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he Slate, its ofDcefs and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties ossened against (he Siotc. its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out pO (he acts or omissions of (he
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

Id.l The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, ond shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, (he following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property domage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and S2.000,000
aggregate; er>d
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all .
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80V« of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 hereinshail
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed In (he State of New
Hampshire.

or4 n r\
Contractor initials CiSCL

Datc^
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14.3 The Contrecior shell furnish lo (he Contracting OfTicer
idemincd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificBie(s)
of Insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her sticcessor, certiricate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under (his
' Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certiricate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attach^ and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each cenirieate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor Is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RS A chapter 281 • A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shell
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation In
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer IdeniiHed in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A and any
applicable rcnewalfs) thereof, which shall be anached and ere
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws In connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof of\er any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by cenified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post GfTice addressed to the ponies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by on instrument in writing signed
by the ponies hereto and only af^er approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
Inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is (he wording chosen by (he parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PAR'flCS. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
constmed to confer any tuch beneru.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
ere for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, rhodify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisioru of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in (he anached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent juritdiciion to
be contrafy to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisionsofthls Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Paged of4
Contractor Iniiials 0
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7^.

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
end expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agrieement. the Department has Identified the Contractor as
a Subrecipicnt. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. el seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational Trainir>g Programs
for a minimum of one hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use Disofdef(OUD) in the
Greater Tilton Area, which includes:

1.4.1. Tiilon.

1.4.2. Northfield.

1.4.3. Franklin.

1.4.4. Sanbomton.

1.4.5. Surrounding small towns.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate In Workforce Readiness and
Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and recovery services, when
applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming to individuals with
OUD who are receiving treatment or recovery support services. The Contractor shall
ensure workforce readiness programming shall include, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Job specific skills training.

2.2.2. Resume and cover letter assistance.

2.2.3. Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skills.

2.2.5. Budgeting and financial management skills.

2.2.6. Customer service training.

2.2.7. Job retention approaches.

2.2.6. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and Interview assistance, including mock Interviews.

Greater Tiltoft Area Family Resource Center ExhtoilA Contraaor Iniiiah
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2.2.10. Connections to employment resources.

2.3. The Contractor shall implement a process to Identify, recruit and engage individuals
with an OUD, including individuals not currently receiving services from the Contractor,
who may be interested in pursuing employment and/or educational opportunities or
who may be underemployed and are seeking a living wage.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide the Recovery Works Curriculum based on nine (9)
modules as follows.

2.4.1. Financial Basics and Time Management 101.

2.4.2. Employment Risks to Early Recovery.

2.4.3. Transferable Skills and Resume Development.

2.4.4. Cover Letter and Job Search Strategies.

2.4.5. Computer Skills and Online Job Search Basics.

2.4.6. Interview Skills.

2.4.7.. Practice Interviewing with a Positive Attitude.

2.4.8. Recovery Thinking and Workplace Ethics.

2.4.9. Common Work Challenges.

2.5. The Contractor shall offer individualized trainings to employers and community groups
utilizing curriculum from Recovery Works, which includes, but is hot limited to:

2.5.1. Opioids and their effects on the brain.

2.5.2. Stigma.

2.5.3. Stages of Recovery.

2.5.4. Pathways to Recovery.

2.5.5. Resources and Referral.

2.6. The Contractor shall develop a customized plan for each individual, based on the
individual's seven dimensions of weDness of physical, emotional, Intellectual, social,
spiritual, environmental and occupational. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Screen individuals for strengths and weaknesses, capacity for work and
necessity of work.

2.6.2. Conduct an intake process that shall include, but is not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Interview with a Recovery Coach.

2.6.2.2. Assess the individual's dimensions of wellness.

2.6.2.3. Assess the individual's occupational wellness.

2.6.3. Address barriers to employment with Individuals and provide assistance in
overcoming those barriers.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are enrolled in other services and supports
that aid individuals in recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce for which they
are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

Grootor Tltion Area FamUy Resource Center Exha)U A Contractor Initials OA-Cj

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF^2 Pege 2 of 5 Date



OocuSign Envelope 10: BC3CC3A4-F6D0-4E19-A4A9-56b9A4946835

OocuSIgn Enveiopo 10: DF1DO4BE-496A419A-95E1-49807FG4959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals'with QUO

Exhibit A

- 2.7.1. The Community Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

2.7.2. The NH Department of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration
grant for Individuals in recovery.

2.7.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative.

2.7.4. NH Works.

2.7.5. NH Employment Security.

2.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with local higher educational and vocational-training
institutions In order to provide individuals with vocational training and educational
opportunities in the treatment and/or recovery service setting, the Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to determine en
individual's level of skills, strengths, arid readiness to seek end enter the
workforce.

2.8.2. Ensure the process is person^centered and based on individual choice and
self-determination.

2.6.3. Utilize the vocational assessment along with the client's input to design a
vocational plan of action.

2.6.4. Link individuals to the appropriate level of services and resources which

must include, but are not limited to:'

2.6.4.1. Resume writing.

2.8.4.2. Job application writing.

2.8.4.3. Improving client-interviewing skills.

2.8.5. Conduct Motivational Interviewing to increase individuals' willingness and ...•
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities.

2.9. The Contractor shall utilize the 0*NET OnLine career exploration and job analysis and
the NH Employment Security website to assist participants with:

2.9.1. Planning career goals.

2.9.2. Choosing a training path.

2.9.3. Searching for a new career.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals are assessed for and receive, as appropriate:

2.10.1. Financial assistance for transportation to classes.

2.10.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as necessary.

2.10.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search functions.,

2.11. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan (or each participant that addresses
'  previous barriers to employment, including but not limited to:

2.11.1. Poor job history.

2.11.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

Greoler Tllton Area Fomtly Resource Centor ExhbilA Contractor
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2.11.3. Criminal background.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources and
assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.12.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2.12.2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

2.12.3. Providing Individuals with job>shadowing and Internship opportunities.

2.13. The Contractor shall, ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided with resources that .support those goals.
Inctuding but not limited to:

2.13.1. Training and class stipends.

-2.13.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

2.13.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.14. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative to offer
opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees in recovery as
a means to reduce stigma, identify employment opportunities, and increase the
number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.15. The Contractor shall build on current relationships with the local community and
employers as well as outreach to others.

2.16. The Contractor shall develop a community outreach plan using the Recovery Friendly
Workforce Initiative materials and processes with community organizations.

2.17. The Contractor shall provide staff, Including a designated program lead, that possess
the expertise and knowledge In providing vocational training to Individuals of special
target populations who experience barriers to employment.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall, on a quarterly basis, track and report Department data
requirements for the programs including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number and type of recrujiment activities for Individuals with an opiold use
disorder.

3.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age.
gender, race, and ethnicity.

3.1.3. ' Vocational services provided per individual.

3.1.4. Start date of employment per individual.

3.1.5. Type of position per individual. *

3.1.6. Name of employers per individual.

3.1.7. Length of employment per individual.

3.1.8. Aggregate'percentage of individuals employed per month.

Greotor Tilton Area Family Reeourco Center ExMill A Contractor Initials
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3.1.9. Number of employers recruited per month.

3.1.10. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
Ihdividuats in recovery per month.

4. Performance Measures

d.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals In the program, who
have not attained gainful employment, complete provided training programs.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall report all. If any. exceptions for individuals who do not
attend available training programs.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain
employment.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly WorWorce Initiative employers.

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

5.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal Information sharing and referral
agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with all
applicable confidentiality iav/s. including 42 CFR Part 2.

5.2. The Contractor shall complete ctient referrals to applicable. Regional Hubs for
substance use services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the
program.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated wth SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3.1. If the Contractor is unat)ie to offer services within the required timeframe.
the Contractor shall submit an updated implementation plan to the
Department for approval to outline anticipated service start dates.

5.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds if sen/ices are not in place within ninety (90) days of the
contract effective date.

Grcoler Tllion Area Fem^ Resource Center Extubll A Contractor Initials C^o .
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.0.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal funds as follows; 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and"M.ental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93780. Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN). Tl0d1685

3. Failure to meet the scope of senrices may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1. Budget through Exhibit 8-3.

4.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Cornpletion Date.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Melissa.Girard@dhhs.nh.90v, or invoices rriay be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant St. 4"^ FL
Concord. NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-

GfoalorTllionArea ExhibilB Contractor Initials _CQ£-
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compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or If the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line Items, related Items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Grpater Tillon Area ExhibtiB Contractof Initials
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SPECIAL PRQVIfilOMS

ContraciOfS Obllgattona: The Conlfaclor covenants and agrees that alt funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractiar hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. Compliance with Fedemt end State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be mode in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for (hat purpose end shell be made end remade at such times es ere prescribed i:iy
(he Department. .

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall meinlain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
informabon necessary to support an eligtbllity determination arxl si^ other Information as the ■
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all fomts ar>d documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Heerlnga: The Contractor understands (hat all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regardii>g that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants at>d agrees that all eppiicanis for services shall be permitted to nil out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
heariftg in accordance with Department regulatioos.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhbit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sul)-conirect or sub-agreement If it-is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of eny kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of (he Contract
end no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contreclor (or any services provided
pnor to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determinatio/t that the individual is eligible for such senhces.

7. Ccndltione of Purchase; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contracl, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate •
which exceeds (he amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at eny time during the lerrri of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine (hat the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has. received payment

'  In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to: '

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rales shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from eny future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; ^
E*hlbil C - SfXcUt Pfftvliions Contrsctof Wilart \J3cC~
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to maXe
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuels for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for alt funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the ellgbillty records specified above, the Contractor
covenants arvf agrees to.maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records (o be .
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,-inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions. lat>or time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Departmdnt.

6.2. Statistical Records; Statistical, enrotlment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibiDty (including ell forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department (o.obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. M^icel Records: Where appropriate and es prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of senrices.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Stales. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemrnenlal Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAG stdr>dard$) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health arid Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall heve access to all reports end records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ell payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records; All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of.such information, disclosure may be made to
public officiats requiring such Information in connection vriih their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concernirtg a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. ^

ExNbli C - Sptclol Prcn4sion3 Contractor Inltlala \ ■
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Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and corxiitions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whetsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and StatisticaJ: The Contractor agrees to sul)mil the foliowing reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-anowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to (he date of the report end
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Depertment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submlnod within thirty (30) deys after the end of the term
of this Conlract. The Final Report shall bs in a form setisfectory to the Department and shall
contain e summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereurtder. the Contract and all the obligations oi the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the.Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall lerminaie. provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the (Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulling from the performance of the services of the Contract shad Include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as "were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) pr^uced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
dislribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all ordinal materials
produced. Including. bul not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters. Of reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contraclwahoul
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for.prcvidlng services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the sen/ices at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the ̂ nlraclor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In conr>eclion with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the fecllltles shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, end requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Mershaland
the local fire protection agency, end shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

ExNWl C - special Provtitofu ConlractOf Inlllala (^2X1
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more employees, it w3l maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide en
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR cctifying it is not required to aubrhlt or meintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim (he exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms ere available et: http:/hvww.ojp.usd^aboul/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency fLEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, naticnalorigln
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance v^th the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 end Title of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whfsttebtower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee whistleslower Rights and Requirement to inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and emptoyees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whbtleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simptined acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function($). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subccntrector's ability to perform' the delegated
function(8). This is accomplished through e written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions lf
■the subcontractor's (Performance b not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same conlrectuai
conditions es the Contractor and the Contractor b responsible to ensure subcontractor comptiar>ce
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the aclivilles. before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written egreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities andreporting
responsibilities end how sanctions/revocation will be meneged if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Extilbii C - Sptdsl Provtslons Contrsctor IntUsls
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19.4. Provide to OHMS en annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at hs discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor ideniiTies deHciencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contrector shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those dir^ end Indirect Item's of expense determined by the Department
to t>e allowable end reimbursat^e in eccordance with cost end accounting principles established
in accordar>ce with slate and federal laws, regulations, rules end orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health end Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department end containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost end sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligtt)le individuals hereur>der, shall
mean that period of time or that specif)^ activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE l-AW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, end
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the sa'id reference shall be deem^ to mean
all such taws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract wit! not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Eihlbh C - Sp»dsl Provision* Controclor inlUsIs
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REVISiONS TO STANDARD COHTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P.37. General Provisions

1.1. Section A. Condilional Nature of Aorecment is replaced as follows: ^

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. ,

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ell obligations of the State
hereunder, inctuding.withoul limitation, the continuance of payments', in whole or in part,
under this Agreement ere contingent upon continued appropriation or avaiiability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the eppropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event she!) the
State be liable for any. payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, termination or rDOdification of appropriated or available funds, the
Stale shad have (he right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce, tanminate or modify series under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to trarisfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of tho General Provisions. Account
Number, or 'any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding ih'e fotiowing language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
-  the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its

option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but riot limited to. Identifyirig the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any Infofmetion or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
erxl shall provide ongoirtg communication end revisions of (he TrensHion Plan to (he State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitloned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan. -

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients end other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in iis
Transition Plan submitted to (he Stale as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Oepanment reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additionai years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties end approval of the Governor end Executive Council.

ExNWt CO - RevfUons/CxcepUorts lo Siandird ConUDCt Lenguage- Contractor irVUals
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identined in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections S151'S160of the Orug-Free Worfcpiace Actof 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlifled in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN (NDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This ceniflcalion Is required by the regulations imple/neniing Sections S151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pad II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (arid by inference, sub-grentees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one cedificatlon to the Oepadment In each fediaral fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The cedificaie set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cedificatlon or violation of the cedificalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cedifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
.  1.1. Pub}ishir>g a statement notifying employees that (he unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controDed substance is prohibited In Ihe grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violstion of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing^an ongoing dnjg-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of dnjg abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug ebuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grent be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of Ihe statement; and •
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his of her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or olhe;rwl$e receiving eclual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position lille, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has desionated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identificatton number(s) of each effected grant;

1.6.' Taking one of the foilowing actions, within 30 cetendar days of receiving notice under
subparegraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action againsi such an emptoyee, up. to and including

termination, consistent svlth the requirements of the Rehebllltation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requlrtng such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehobilltetior^ program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other eppropriale agency;

1.7. Making a good faith'effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
imptementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2.1.3. 1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with (he specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, dty. county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file lhal are not (dentined here.

Verxlor Name:

a
Oat Na

Tiiie:
I a Ceo tc
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of -
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS '

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under TlOe XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief-, that: [

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to inftuerice an offtcer or. employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an ofHcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cor>gress In
connection with the awardlrtg of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modifrcalion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speoTic mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid lb any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the urtdersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and idenlined as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and thai all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transeciion
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be aubjaci to a cMI penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such faiture.

Vendor Name;

iln I NaffiA-11.1 rDale ' Namef^ (X
Tiiie: I r
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CERTtFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBItlTy MATTERS

The Vendor identiftod in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to con^ply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12&49 and 4S CFR Part 76 regarding Debermenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative; as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certiflcation;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract)! the prospective primary participant is providing the
• certification set out below.

2. The Inabilily of a person to provide the certlficetlon required below will not necessarify result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submil en
explanation of why it cannot provide the cenlfication. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

' partidpanl to furnish a certification or en explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
Ihls transaction.

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction.- If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification. In eddiUon to other remedies
available to the Federel Government, OHHS may terminate this transection for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shaO provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary partidpanl learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
drcumstances.

5: The terms 'covered transection,' 'debarred.' 'suspended,' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.* 'participant,' 'persori,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.' 'proposal.* and
"voluntarily excluded." as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in Ihe Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pert 76. See the
attached definllions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Oeberment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may roly upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
parltcipani may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall i>e construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knovriedge and
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inforrnation of a parUcipanl is not required to exceed Ihet which is normally possessed by a pAxfent
person in the ordinary course of business de8lin{}s.

10. Except for transactions authorized urxter paragraph 6 of these InslnrcUons, If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into e lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may .terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief, that it end Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or '

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or egency;
11.2. have not within a three*year period preceding this proposal (coniract) been convicted of or had

a clvD judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal..State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or Slate antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement. Iheft. forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently ir>dicted (or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federel, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l){b)
of this certirication; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appllcallon/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable (o certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach en explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier panlcipanl. as

defined (n 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief that it and Its principals;
13.1. are not presently detorred. suspended, propoised for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded (rorn partlcipaUon in (his transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where (he prospective lower tier participani Is unable to certify to any of (he above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (coniract).

14. The prospective lower tier participani further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include (his clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and In a!) solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

Date Nam( ok:a
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CERTIFICATiON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAiNING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMiNATlON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAiTH-flASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

•WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Verxfor identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identinad in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceriificatioo: . '

Verxfor will comply, and will require any 8ut)grBntee8 or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1958 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which p^hib(ts
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment prectices or in
the delivery of oetvlces or benenis, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sax. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preveniion Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)} which adopts by
refererKe. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal-funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the CIvi) Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the RehabiBtadon Act of 1973 (29 U.S:C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial fecillties. and transportation;

-theEducallon Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683.1685-86). which prohibits
dis'crtmination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Secttons 6106-07). which prohibits discrimtnalfon on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies'
and Procedures); Execulivo Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order'No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Aulhorizellon
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 12013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistieblower Protections, which'protecis employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blo^ng activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certincation shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termir^ation of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administralrve agency makes a Hnding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex .
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health .and Human Services, end
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceitificalion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with.the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Nan^:

Date ' IA Co O
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CERTiFiCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Snx)ke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smokinp not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entily and used routinely or regulariy for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services lo children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does nol apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medi^id furtds, end portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the ImposlUon of a dvll monetary penalty of up to
SiOOO per day end/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor idenUHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signeture-of the Contractor's
representative as identiried in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiricatlon:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees lo make reasonable efforts lo comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

ireosurer
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 appticabie to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meanirig given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Pesionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AaQreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

\

f. 'Heaith Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinicai Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2.of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pubiic Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "mdividual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Pans 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^
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I. 'Reauir&d bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.'

m. "Secretarv' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Securltv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by-
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HIT6CH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Secun'ty Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms sal forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for (he health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party: and (ii) an agreement from such third party to rK>tify Business
Associate, in accprdance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confldentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law.-without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PH) until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notiOes the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Secunty Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards:

(3) Obligations and ActlvltlBS of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediatety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but noi be
limiled to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re>identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health lnforrr>ation or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to'the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Businesis Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Secliori 3 (I). The'Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be recelvirtg PHI
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pursuant to (his Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shali be governed.by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreemeni for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of e written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Cove.red Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate^shaii provide access to phi in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed^by Covered Entity, to an individual in order (o meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity siuch Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of terminallon of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been olhervrise agreed to In
the Agreerrient. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreemeni. to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasibie. for so long as Busine^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQatlone of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.S20. lo the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered-entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of pHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Enlliy. If Covered Entity •
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a- Definitions and Reoulaiorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have-the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule; amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to lake such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreemenl. from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and appllcdble federal and state law.

c- Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule^^.
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e. SBoreoatton. If any term or condition of Ihis Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
p8rson(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destAJClion of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature^IAuJIt^:onz

Name of Abttujized Representative

ed Representative

esentativ

Title of. Authorized Representative

Dale

Qi(eaicrTilHy\ frumiltj ̂ soufce(^^
Name.of the Vendor

Signature of Authorized Representative

(3q niA (ii Ooni/^
Narhi of Authorized Representative

rcns^u re.r
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accouniabillty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than. S25:000 and awarded on or after October 1. 20t0. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated Rrst-tier sub^rants of S25.000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding ager>cy
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identlfter of the entity (DUNS iV)
'10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are .greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must'submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, .plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Vendor tdentined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Lew 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Conlractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the (oilowtng Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability end transparency Act.'

Vendor Name:

Date' Na
Title,

j measurer

ExNbU J - Centriution Regarcllng th« Fedftrv) Funding Vendor Inillsis
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FORMA

As the Vernier identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify (hat the responses to the-
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity Is: J_ i-roBZit-Z-
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^ranls, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual -
gross revenues from U.iS. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to P2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to U2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or I5(d} of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.7em(a). 78o(d}) or section 6104 of (he internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If (he answer to 03 above is YES, stop here

If (he answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the followirvg:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Narhe:

Name:

Name:

Amount: ̂

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount:,

Ci«OHMS/nO>i>
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OHMS Information Security Requirements

A. OefmiUons

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning .'Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800*61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information'.or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Informalion and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ail information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition js governed by
state or federal law or .regulation. This information Includes, but Is not lirnited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.,. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portabiiity and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgate thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unv/anted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modincatlon or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-0:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information* (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Paft -164, Subpart C, and .amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by e technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITtES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, offtcers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in.response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and.must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User rnust only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorixed representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
. hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops -and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password*protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ell
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

I. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of (he United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security, events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-
.hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Oisposltion

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will mairitain a docurnented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a pad of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containirig State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or' otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-86. Rev 1, Guidelines
for- Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Depadment of Commerce. The Contractor will document and cedify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written cedlfication to the Depadment
upon request. The written cedlfication will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy a!) hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the .termination of . this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor wili maintain appropriate authentication and access controis to
contractor systems that coiled, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicabie.

4. The Contrador will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contrador provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contrador will be sut>-contrading any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach-notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining" and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements-will be
completed and signed by the Contrador and any applicable sub-contradors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contrador Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the .Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Departnr>ent and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey/is to enable the Department and
Contrador to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The-^ survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or ihe Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope ofjhe engagement between the Departmenl and the Contrador changes.

10. The Contrador will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Departmenl data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from Ihe Information Security Office
leadership member within Ihe Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all cosis of response and recovery from
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the,breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring sen/Ices, matting costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. ^

(  .

12. Contractor must, comply with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requlrements.appllcabie to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § S52e). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45'C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level end
scope of security that is not less than the level arid scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

r

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the

^ State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes, any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

I

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

Peg«To>9 Osie^
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must t>e stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours, as well as' non*duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.)..

g. only.authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data,.Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable, information, .and in ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained,- used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password)' must not be
shared vsnth anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for,oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential. Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contraclof must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
•accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4.^ Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notlficaiion is required, and, if so. Identify approprlaie
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and- contents from among different
options, and t>ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures..

Jncidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v
B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformalionSecurltyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for individuals with ODD
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019, (Item #19), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$497,873.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 6.11., to read:

6.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana for treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (ODD).

6.11.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that provides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memoranda of
understanding (MOD) that receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 6.12., to read:

6.12. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan
includes:

6.12.1. internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

6.12.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

6.12.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.
—OS
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6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding Subsection 6.13., to read:

6.13. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

6.13.1. Invoicing;

6.13.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.13.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on
09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Sen/ices,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326, and as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA

#93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
•read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. Invoices .shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs. (
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5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable
expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be used for light
snacks, not to exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for
clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need
to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 11, to
read:

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 12, to
read:

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
Including failure to submit required monthly and/or quarterly reports.

12. Add Exhibit 8-6 Amendment #2, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit 8-7 Amendment #2, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

— DS

^6

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A02 Granite Pathways

A-S-1.0 Page3of5 9/3/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Ckjntract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

9/3/2021

Date

—OoeuStgn^d by:

— ED0O0&B04C03442...

NameiKatja Fox

Title: Director

9/3/2021

Date

Granite Pathways

-OecuSksnxl by:

^  40oweA»4<oo*eo... -'

Name: Kenneth Brezenoff

Title: General Counsel

RFP.2019-BDAS.12-WORKF-01-A02

A-S-1.0

Granite Pathways

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuSigntd by:

9/7/2021 I J, (Jw^dfLty
0500458E80D4403...

[)3te Name *'* Marshal l

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A02 Granite Pathways

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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ExMit 8-4 BudgM Amendment tl

SOftlBudgM

Now Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Cenlreetor Nime: CmaB PaOiwaye

Budpet RequMt tor Woridorcs ReadnM* & Veeationd TnMig Proerame far IndNlduate wlh OUO

BtidgM Period; SPY 22 9/3W21-e/3«22

1. TeidSjdtyftVeoee
Dfeet - -

_ToJ^Pro2wnCo^ CoMreetor Share I Melch

hidkwri

Funded by OMHS co»*n>c» ehafa~

58.100,00 t
2. Enwiovea Banaiila

i. Conaulafta

«- Egtip"
Rartd

_Rffidn IMaMananca

Ptfereaa<De[«»clati>n

5. Stsotaa:

EducaUom

Phanneey

Medical

Occudney

8. Cur Eitoeneae

Talecrone
2.800,00

300.00
_S>ea2]Edom
AuU Lesd.

BoaR) Edwn

9. Soflviere

10. Maritetlno/Comrm*^'"ne

11. Staff Educdbn and Ttdrina

12. Stiicoretacta/Aofeemaila

13. Other (apedfk detdte martjdocvt:

Indaeet Cod Amotae Baaed onFadetaly Napotialad
Rate

TOTAL

aofDUecl

139.S00.00 S

Grartta Padamaya
RFP-2O1MOAS-12-VV0RKF-O1-A02

Ed«d B-8 Amardinere «2 SOR H Budget
Page 1 of 1

Coieadot HtWi
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ExNU B-7 BudgM Aimndn«n( 92

SOR I BudB*l

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Cofitnctar Nam*: Gnnto Paltnrcys

Budgel Request for Wedderee Reedlneu & VoestlenalTreMieF'eB'snw for kuMduets wKh QUO

Budget Pertod: SPY 23 7/1/22-9/29122

^wide^j^t1H^ortj»^5hefe_T otel ProQiem Co« Cortrector Share / MM eh

_Tolaf_SAQAVags^
t Empbvee Benefita

3. Coneiaam

Eqiipniert:

Repaif and Maiftenarge

_Piii|£Mea/De£cedaBan

5 Sicotee:

7. Oeogatcy 2.900.00

9. Ctfrert Eapeteae

Tataohene

Poatepe

Sthecrtpdona

AuM arJLaoal

Board ETpamee

10, MartieOti/ComnmaieaUerd

11. Staff Eduealton and TmMm

12. StOcoftracta/Aoieentena

13. Other(apedflcd«ta*imar»3a»rv>:

Indirect Coat /Vmout Baaed onPaderafy Negotiated
Rate e.40000

4e.500.iw 9 40.500.00 I

Irtdfcect As A Percent of Okecl

Gtacite PattMvys

RFP-2O1MDAS-12-WORfV-0t-A02

ExHbil B-7 AmenAnert 92 SOR U Budget
Page t ofl

Ad

Cortrector httktk

9/3/2021
Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccretar\' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009. 1 further certify' that all fees

and documents required by the Secrctar>' of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 613S81

Certificate Number: 0005359576

u.

O •9

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretar)' of Stale
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. William Rider, hereby certify that;
1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Granite Pathways LLC.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken via email with the Board of Directorsyshareholders. duly called and
held on August 26'". 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders willingly voted to approve the DHHS
contract, RFP-2019-BOAS-12WORKF-01-02.

VOTED: That Kenneth Brezenoff, General Counsel is duly authorized on behalf of Granite Pathways, LLC to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the Slate of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: William Rider

Title: Interim BOD Director

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OOmrYY)

12/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Plains, NY 10604

914 459-6200

Carolyn DIMarco

»Vexti:914459-6200 610 537-4220

ado1!ess: Carolyn.Dimarco@usi.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Berkshire Hathaway Specialty Ins Co. 22276

INSURED

Granite Pathways, Inc.
633 3rd Avenue, 6th Floor

New York, NY 10017-6943

INSURER B Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Ins. Co. 20044

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER e

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL

ItlSK
SUBR

ms. PCUCY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

(MMfl30/YYYY> UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE ra OCCUR
47SPK25564205 09/30/2020 09/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

aoSu^rPence)
MED EXP (Any one pereon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GE^fL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY □ □ LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Si,000,000
$1.000.000
$25.000
$1,000,000
$3,000,000
$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

47SMA14808006
MA only
47RWS14808206
All other states

09/30/2020

09/30/2020

09/30/2021

09/30/2021

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa eccidefitl t1,000,000
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident]
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aecldenti

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

47SUM14808306 09/30/2020 09/30/2021 EACH (XCURRENCE $25,000,000
AGGREGATE $25,000,000

X RETENTIONSlOOOO
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A

FEWC115677

(Excl NY & TX)
12/11/2020 12/11/2021 V PERA STATUTE

OTH-
£B_

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000
E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professional Llab
Sexual Abuse/Mol

47SPK25564205
47SPK25564205

09/30/2020
09/30/2020

09/30/2021
09/30/2021

SIM per occ/$3M Agg
SIM per OCC/S3M Agg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlortal Remartis Schedule, may be attached If more space It required)

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New

Hampshire,Department of Health

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301
1

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S30599844/M30597832

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

AXYZP
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MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to support individuals with substance use disorders and
mental illness in achieving their life goals as valued members of their
community.

Granite Pathways develops innovative, and sustainable solutions that are
changing people's lives.
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Consolidated Financlal Statements and

Supplementary Information Together
with Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants

The FEDCAP Group

September 30, 2020 and 2019
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@ Grant Thornton

GRANT THORNTON uR REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

757 Third Avanue, SP- Floor

New York. NY 10017

D «1 2125000100

F ♦1 212 370 4520

To the Board of Directors of

The FEDCAP Group:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The
FEDCAP Group (collectively, "FEDCAP") which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
FEDCAP's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

GT.COM Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd(GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms
are separate legal entities and are not a wond.viOe partnership.
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@ Grant Thornton

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of The REDCAP Group as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Supplementary Information ^
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.
These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York

March 18, 2021
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of September 30,

2020 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately $4,394,000 in 2020 and $2,180,000 in 2019)

Contributions and grants receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectible contributions of approximately $250,000 in 2020 and 2019)

Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Investments

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, net
Beneficial interest in trusts

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

Advances from government agency
Current portion of revolving loans
Current portion of obligations under capital leases
Notes payable, current

Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligation
Notes payable
Revolving loans
Payroll Protection Program notes payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Without donor restrictions • non-controlling interest

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  24,926,770

56,865,665

2,131,974

407,002

8,321,637

92,653,048

9,317,759

842,860

84,033,493

4,713.515

478,067

2,159,924

1,501,527

43,548,100

34,181,372

30,515,955

26,653,273

12,481,054

6,586,501

153,966,255

$  9,821,462

54,652,438

$  30,200,021

6,066,207

3,620,421

4,352,341

111,693

8,655,835

77,593,769

8,703,912

761,776

86,739,150

4,512,345
478,062

S  192,038,742 $ 178,789,014

39,601,357

1,772,430

433,397

3,000,000
2,155,006

1,117,418

48,079,608

34,773,486

30,368,846

23,653,273

4,274,856

141,150,069

29,925,809

(440,118)

8,586,796

29,006,372

133,033

8,499,540

38,072,487 37,638,945

$  192.038.742 $ 178.789.014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the years ended September 30,

2020 2019

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Revenues

Contract services and products
Rehabilitation and vocational programs
Contribution revenues

Inherent contribution

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Interest income

Miscellaneous revenue

Net assets released from restrictions

$  112,977,906

153,984.201

5,619,460

263

391,942

205,383

130,321

113,913

$

201,169

(113,913)

$  112,977,906

153,984,201

5,619,460

263

593,111

205,383

130,321

$  117,957,318

157,515,208

19,615,745

4,771,572

23,299

757,089

231,885

144,754

$

25,000

(15,139)

(144,754)

$ 117,957,318

157,515,208

19,640,745
4.771,572

8,160

757,089

231,885

Total revenues 273,423.389 87,256 273,510,645 301,016,870 (134,893) 300,881,977

Expenses

Program services:
Contract services and products
Rehabilitation and vocational programs

97,048,935

136,046,180
-

97,048,935

136,046,180

105,974,532

151,992,240

- 105,974,532

151,992,240

233,095,115 • 233,095,115 257,966,772 • 257,966,772

Supporting services:
Management and general
Development

36,383,728

3,598,260
-

36,383,728

3,598,260

38,307,140

4,011,241
- 38,307,140

4,011,241

39,981,988
' 39,981,988 42,318,381 • 42,318,381

Total expenses 273,077,103 . 273,077,103 300,285,153 _ 300,285,153

Change in net assets 346,286 87,256 433,542 731,717 (134,893) 596,824

Net assets at beginning of year 29,139,405 8,499,540 37,638,945 28,407,688 8,634,433 37,042,121

Net assets at end of year S  29.485.691 $  8.586.796 $  38.072.487 $  29.139.405 S  8.499.540 $ 37.638.945

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6
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Th9 FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For th9 year ended September 30,2020

Program Services Supporting Services

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses S  74.358.692 S  82,121,469 $  156,480,161 $  13,141,708 $  1,478,745 S 14,620,453 S  171,100,614

Professional fees 152.185 20,662,291 20,814,476 2,260,231 794,585 3.054,816 23,869,292

Professional development and evaluation 11.472 360,983 372,455 227,206 5,382 232,588 605,043

Materials ar>d supplies 3.445.688 2,007.974 5,453,662 146,699 15,591 162,290 5,615,952

Commissions 2.514,416 12,459 2,526,875 - . . 2,526,875

Telephone 86.175 331,392 417,567 1,002,765 5,194 1,007,959 1,425,526

Postage and shipping 171.723 78,718 250,441 92,182 131,337 223,519 473,960

Insurance 1.034,048 1,272,779 2,306,827 846,226 22,442 868,668 3,175,495

Occupancy costs 2.250,654 10,961.025 13,211,679 2,836,553 178,884 3,015,437 16,227,116

Equipment rental and maintenance 967,444 608,978 1,576,422 254,953 35,717 290,670 1,867,092

Equipment purchases 320,484 119,100 439,584 41,580 1,036 42,616 482,200

Client transportation and travel 242.630 1,490,685 1,733,215 415,420 88,195 503,615 2,236,830

Subscription and printing 49,070 296,847 345,917 503,126 40,841 543,967 889,884

Technology 329,854 1,683,260 2,013,114 2,264,647 31,918 2,296,565 4,309,679

Interest expense . 18,609 18,609 4,219,963 - 4,219,963 4,238,572

Bank charges artd processing fees 79,239 43,677 122,916 741,665 17,144 758,809 881,725

Bad debt expense - 193 193 1,204,034 - 1,204,034 1,204,227

Subcontractor expense 10.632,908 7,420,600 18,053,508 2,222,177 13,421 2,235,598 20,289,106

Stipends 26,605 3,805,756 3,832,361 59,704 11,362 71,066 3,903,427

Security guard expense 1,200 221,556 222,756 27,602 224 27,826 250,582

Other 67,224 1,586,078 1,653,302 248,172 717,277 965,449 2,618,751

Total expenses t>efore depreciation and amortization 96,741,611 •  135,104,429 231,846,040 32,756,613 3.589,295 36,345,908 268,191,948

Depreciation and amortization 307,324 941.751 1,249,075 3,627,115 8,965 3,636,080 4,885,155

Total expenses S  97.046.935 S  136.046.180 $ 233.095.115 S  36.383.728 S  3.598.260 39.981.988 $ 273.077.103

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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Th« FEDCAP Group

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For (he year ended Septemt>er 30, 2019

Program Services Supporting Services

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses $  75.112,041 S  92,028.205 S  167.140,246 S  13,482.595 $  1.321.359 $ 14.803,954 S  181.944,200
Professional fees 190,014 16.794.601 16.984,615 4.155.799 773.764 4.929,563 21.914,178
Professional development and evaluation 52,176 760.002 812.178 486.694 8,354 495,248 1.307,426
Materials ar>d supplies 4.608,212 2.294,309 6,902.521 272.753 21,424 294,177 7.196.698
Commissions 2.983.026 4.969 2,987.995 ■  . . . 2.987.995
Telephone 190.867 850,894 1,041.781 714.266 16,490 730.756 1.772.537
Postage and shipping 127.982 200.267 328.249 31.436 6,129 37.565 365.814
insurance 1,170.764 957.823 2,128.587 1.049.952 14,847 1,064.799 3,193.386
Occupancy costs 2,789.676 13.459.134 16.248.810 2.010.115 136.043 2.146.156 18,394.968
Equipment rental and maintenance 1,190.342 759.425 1.949.767 311.275 42.037 353.312 2,303.079
Equipment purchases 312.686 113.267 425.953 56.833 5.761 62,594 488,547
Client transportation and travel 355,593 3,537.161 3.892,754 643.055 130.157 973,212 4,665,966
Subscription and printing 85.901 297,125 383.026 596,854 23.194 620,048 1,003,074
Technology 422.832 1.584,234 2,007,066 3,057.023 82.864 3.139.887 5.146,953
Interest expense

• 31.347 31.347 4.547.252 . 4.547.252 4.578.599
Sank charges and processing fees 137.624 37.119 174,743 799.792 34,665 834.457 1.009.200
Bad debt provision

- 55.371 55,371 9,771 . 9.771 65.142
Subcontractor expense 15,701.994 9,751.574 25.453.568 1.492.606 130,670 1.623.278 27,076.846
Stiperxls 24,586 4,730.195 4.754,781 80.113 1.338 81.451 4,836.232
Security guard expense 1,672 604,506 606.178 55,127 272 55,399 661,577
Other 173.575 2.160,645 2.334,220 605,829 1.255.001 1.860,830 4.195,050

Total expenses before depreciation and amortization 105.631,583 151.012,173 256,643.756 34,659,342 4,004.369 38.663,711 295,307,467

Depreciation and amortization 342.949 980.067 1,323.016 3.647,798 6,872 3,654,670 4.977.686

Total expenses $  105.974.532 S  151,992.240 S 257.966.772 $  38.307.140 $  4.011.241 $ 42.318.381 $ 300,285.153

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended September 30,

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .
Amortization of goodv/ili
Bad debt provision

Inherent contribution

Realized and unrealized gains on investments

Changes in assets and liabilities;
Accounts receivable

Contribution receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Beneficial interest In remainder trust

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Cash paid in acquisition
Cash received in acquisition
Capital expenditures

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in advances from government agencies

Change in revolving loans
Proceeds from Payroll Protection Plan notes payable
Proceeds from notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Repayment of capital lease obligations

Net cash provided by financing activities

increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow Information:

Cash interest paid during the year

433,542

4.885,155

118,911

1,204.227

(593,111)

(3.517.454)

2,320,367

(295,309)
334.198

(201.170)

(9.401.336)
4,293,777
2,311,645

1,893,442

505,011
(525,747)

(200,000)

(2,179,498)

(2,400,234)

3.187.024

12.481.054

531.218

(587,196)

15,612.100

15,105.308

9,821,462

596.824

4,977,686

65,142

(4.771,572)
(8.160)

(9,347.783)

(3,004.961)
133.256

1,612,193

134,394

903,268

(2.392,733)
(393,777)

(11,496.223)

19.000.000

(9.468,482)

355,904

(5.543,024)

4.344.398

(1,051.964)
8,800.000

(1.220,124)
(369,572)

6,158,340

(993,485)

10,814,947

J__24J26j77^ J^_9j8214^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The FEDCAP Group, Inc. (the "Parent"), established on October 1,2018, is a private, nonprofit organization
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Parent is exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"). On July 24, 2019, the Parent became the
sole member of the following affiliates; Fedcap, Inc ("Fed Inc."), Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc
("FRS"), Wildcat Services Corporation ("Wildcat"), ReServe Elder Services, Inc. ("ReServe"), Community
Workshops, Inc. ("CWS"), Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY"), 1184 Deer Park Ave., Inc. ("1184" or "Red
Mango"), Granite Pathways, Inc ("GP"), Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc ("ESRI"), Seacoast Pathways, Inc.
("Seacoast"), Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST"), Benevolent, MVLE, Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT"),
Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT") and Fedcap UK. The Parent and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as "FEDCAP."

FRS is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of New York State. FRS is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. FRS was the sole member of the above-
named subsidiaries through July 23, 2019, at which point the Parent became the sole corporate member.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities, and other work-related disadvantages, who face significant barriers to employment. FRS's goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream.

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions. The primary customers in these divisions are federal, and New York State and City agencies and
certified home health agencies.

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS
offers training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services,
data entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then seeks
to employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

Wildcat is a nonprofit entity that is located in New York City and provides employment training, jobs
placement and "supportive employment" opportunities for individuals with barriers to employment.

ReServe Is a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches continuing professionals age 55+ with
organizations that need their expertise. Reserve provides direct services, administrative support, and
capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies, cultural institutions, and public agencies.

CWS is a nonprofit corporation located in Boston, Massachusetts, whose mission is to help people who
have barriers to work obtain employment and achieve greater self-sufficiency through job training,
placement, and support services.

ESNY is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide programs and services for people with disabilities,
assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to communities in developing necessary
and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance for people with disabilities which will
enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

On May 1,2016, ESNY received a contribution in the form of a Red Mango franchise, incorporated as 1184.
1184 was incorporated as a for profit corporation, operating as a social enterprise which includes a training
center and employment opportunities for veterans. 1184 ceased operations as of September 6,2019. The
loss related to these operations did not significantly impact operating results for fiscal 2019.

CP is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to provide services to empower and support adults with mental
illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable housing, and meaningful
relationships.

ESRI is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure that all people with disabilities or
special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn, work and play in their communities.

Seacoast is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to support adults living with mental illness on their paths to
recovery through the work-ordered day.

SGST is a nonprofit entity that provides coordinated services to holistically connect people to the resources
they need to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufficiency.

Benevolent is a nonprofit entity that provides economic wellbeing to individuals and families in need,
through non-government sources.

MVLE is a nonprofit entity that provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with
disabilities in the Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area.

Fed Inc. was established as a private, nonprofit organizations under the laws of the State of Delaware. Fed,
Inc. was formed to provide workforce development opportunities for people who face barriers to economic
well-being.

ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the Central
Texas region.

ESNT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the North Texas
region.

On November 7, 2018, Fedcap UK was established and was registered as a UK Charity. Fedcap UK was
founded to allow for the advancement of social inclusion, by enabling economic independence, employment
and opportunity to participate in society for socially and economically disadvantaged and disabled
individuals through various workforce and economic development, educational and occupational health
initiatives.

On December 3, 2018, Fedcap UK acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited ("KS"). a United Kingdom company
through a stock purchase. KS provides high quality job support, placement, retention and related services
to people in the United Kingdom.

On February 22, 2019, Fedcap Employment Limited {"FED") was established under the laws of the United
Kingdom. FED delivers employability solutions across the United Kingdom to build communities through a
blend of local frontline professional teams and like-minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is the sole
corporate member of FED.

On March 1, 2019, Fedcap Employment Scotland Limited ("FES") was established under the laws of
Scotland in the United Kingdom. FES delivers employability solutions across Scotland to build communities
through a blend of local frontline professional teams and like-minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is
the sole corporate member of FES.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2^48F.BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

On March 14, 2019, FES became a majority shareholder of Start Scotland Limited ("SS"). SS is a value-
driven organization that strives to put its customers first, understanding their needs and closely engaging
with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and training.

On September 30, 2019, ESNY acquired and became the sole member of These Our Treasures, Inc.
{"TOTS"), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with developmental disabilities in
an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and helps children to achieve in
the context of the larger classroom and school setting.

On December 17, 2019, FRS formed Fedcap Apex Acquisition LLC, which executed an asset purchase
agreement effective September 18, 2020 for the assets and liabilities of Breton International, Inc. (a/k/a
Apex Technical School). Apex Technical School ("APEX") is an adult vocational technical school and offers
seven certificate courses designed to focus on basic trade skills and labor skills for its students.

On January 10, 2020, Fedcap Canada was established as a not-for-profit organization according to the
Canada Not-for profit Corporations Act. Fedcap Canada was founded to advance the economic and social
well-being of the impoverished and disadvantaged by providing educational services, vocational
rehabilitation, job training and job placement services. The Parent is the sole corporate member of Fedcap
Canada.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

FEDCAP classifies its net assets in the following categories:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are, therefore, available for the
general operations of FEDCAP. Net assets without donor restrictions may also be designated for
specific purposes by FEDCAP's Board of Directors or may be limited by legal requirements or
contractual agreements with outside parties.

Net assets without donor restrictions also includes the portion of net assets in a consolidated subsidiary
owned by non-controlling investors and are reflected on the consolidated statements of financial
position as net assets without donor restrictions - non-controlling interests.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Represent net assets which are subject to donor-imposed restrictions whose use is restricted by time
and/or purpose. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that require
FEDCAP to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time. When donor
restrictions expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction ends, such net
assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the consolidated
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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OocuSign Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions whose restrictions are met during the same fiscal year in
which the contribution was recognized are presented as contribution revenues without donor
restrictions on the consolidated statements of activities.

Net assets with donor restrictions also includes the corpus of gifts, which must be maintained In
perpetuity, but allow for the expenditure of net investment income and gains earned on the corpus for
either specified or unspecified purposes in accordance with donor stipulations.

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions and the non-controlling interest in Start Scotland Limited
during the year ended September 30, 2020 is summarized below:

Total without

Donor Without Donor Non-controlling
Restrictions Restrictions Interest

Balance, September 30, 2019 $  29,139,405 $ 29,006,372 $ 133,033

Change in net assets from operations 346,286 919,437 (573,151)

Balance, September 30, 2020 $  29,485,691 $  29,925,809 $ (440,118)

Cash Equivalents

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase, including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be
cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers ("ASC 606"), FEDCAP recognizes revenue when control of the promised goods or services
are transferred to FEDCAP's clients or outside parties in an amount that reflects the consideration FEDCAP
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The standard outlines a five-step model
whereby revenue is recognized as performance obligations within a contract are satisfied.

FEDCAP has identified contract services and products revenues and rehabilitation and vocational program
revenues as revenue categories subject to ASC 606. FEDCAP recognizes revenues from contracts with
customers, as goods or services are transferred or provided in accordance with ASC 606.

Payments received in advance of FEDCAP satisfying its performance obligations are recorded within
deferred revenue In the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position ($4,951,251 and
$116,014, as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively). The changes in deferred revenue were
caused by normal timing differences between the satisfaction of performance obligations and customer
payments.

FEDCAP's contracts with customers generally contain terms that are less than one year. Accordingly,
FEDCAP elected the practical expedients under ASC 606 to not assess whether a contract has a significant
financing component or disclose the information regarding the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers.

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. Revenue recognition for these various revenue streams is at the point in time coinciding with
the completion of the corresponding performance obligations to customers.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6E8E-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Contract Services and Products

FEDCAP's contract services and products revenue includes HomeCare services, facility services, and other
cost recovery contracts. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with
fixed rates as the performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term.
For performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have
been incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the
respective contracts, which are the performance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates
revenue from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Rehabilitation and Vocational Programs

FEDCAP's rehabilitation and vocational program revenue includes medical services, tuition and job training.
FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates as the
performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term. For performance-
based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have been incurred,
milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the respective
contracts, which are the performance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue
from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such assets
is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and

contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions. Contributions with donor restrictions that are received and met in the same fiscal year
are recorded as contribution revenues without donor restrictions. Otherwise, once stipulated time
restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions as "net assets released from restrictions" in the consolidated
statements of activities. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met. Conditional contributions received in advance of meeting the associated
contributions are recorded as deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position ($1,114,956 and $1,656,416, as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively). There were no
outstanding conditional contributions yet to be received as of September 30, 2020 or 2019.

FEDCAP recognizes revenue from contributions, grants and contracts in accordance with ASU 2018-08,
Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made. Accordingly, FEDCAP evaluates whether a transfer of assets is (1) an
exchange transaction in which a resource provider is receiving commensurate value in return for the
resources transferred or (2) a contribution. If the transfer of assets is determined to be an exchange
transaction, FEDCAP applies guidance under ASC 606. If the transfer of assets is determined to be a
contribution, FEDCAP evaluates whether the contribution is conditional based upon whether the agreement
includes both (1) one or more barriers that must be overcome before FEDCAP is entitled to the assets
transferred and promised and (2) a right of return of assets transferred or a right of release of a promisor's
obligation to transfer assets.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are derived from contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. The carrying value of contributions and grants and accounts receivable are reduced by an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value.
FEDCAP determines Its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, FEDCAP's previous loss history, the donor's current ability to pay its obligation,
and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer
than the payment terms are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they
become uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income
in the period received.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $5,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year
are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from 3 to 40 years. Significant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized; normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.. The classification is based on the function
and nature of expenses directly used in the program. Common expenses are allocated to the programs
and supporting services based on the benefit derived. The methods used for the allocation include square
footage and actual percentage of time dedicated to the program or supporting service.

Commissions

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide for
commissions to be paid to these organizations in the range of 0.87% to 3.9% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $2,526,875 and $2,987,996 for the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included within contract services and products
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAR requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions relate to estimates of collectability of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property,
plant, and equipment, and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
' and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows;

Level 1 • Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date, A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market provides
the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the market.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities includes investments for
which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments that are fair valued
using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These securities
are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into the
determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management judgment or
estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial Instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes "oliservable''
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. FEDCAP's beneficial interest in
trusts consists of interests in both charitable remainder trusts and perpetual trusts. Under charitable
remainder trusts, FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trust upon the termination of the trust.
Under perpetual trusts, FEDCAP has the irrevocable right to receive all or a portion of the income earned
on the trust assets either in perpetuity or for the life of the trust. FEDCAP recognizes its interest in trusts as
increases to net assets at the fair value of trust assets, less the present value of the estimated future
payments to be made under the specific terms of the trusts. Fluctuations in the fair value of these assets
are recorded as changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities.

16



$ 4,512,345 $ 4,646,739

(53,160) (58,034)
254,330 (76,360)

$ 4,713,515 $ 4,512,345

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65C651

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

At September 30, 2020 and 2019, FEDCAP's beneficial interest in trusts are reflected at fair value in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and is classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy.

2020 2019

Balance, beginning of year

Contributions/additions

Distributions

Appreciation/(Depreciation)

Balance, end of year

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset.

If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value.

Tax-Exempt Status

FEDCAP follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment ofthe tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged.

FEDCAP is exempt from federal income tax under IRC section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the IRC.
These organizations have processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-exempt
status, to identify and report unrelated income, to determine their filing and tax obligations in jurisdictions
for which they have nexus, and to Identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions.
FEDCAP has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition or
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill

Goodwill was established through the acquisition of APEX in 2020 and KS in 2019. The value reported on
the consolidated statements of financial position represents the residual difference between the
consideration paid and the fair value of the net assets acquired. FEDCAP has elected under relevant
guidance to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years and to perform a goodwill impairment
analysis at the entity or reporting unit level when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair value of
the entity or reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. No impairment charges were recorded during
fiscal 2020 or 2019.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2020 and 2019, contributions and grants receivable consisted of receivables amounting
to $2,381,974 and $4,602,341, respectively, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $250,000 for each
year. Contributions and grants receivable as of September 30,2020 and 2019 are expected to be collected
within one year.

Approximately 35% and 36% of the contributions and grants receivable (gross) is due from one donor at
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 4-INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30;

Money market funds

Mutual funds

2020 2019

$ 320,331 $ 288,173
8,997,428 8,415,739

$ 9,317,759 $ 8,703,912

FEDCAP's mutual fund investments are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP's
money market fund Investments do not meet the definition of a security under U.S. GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.

NOTE 5 - INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30:

Inventories:

Raw materials

Work-in-process and finished goods

Reserve

2020 2019

$ 308,727 $ 86,883
188,275 114,810
(90,000) (90,000)

$ 407,002 $ 111,693
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NOTE 6 - PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30;

2020 2019

Land $  1,617,809 $  1,617,809
Building improvements 4,325,368 4,206.798
Buildings 40,342,758 40,342,758
Capital lease - building 35,918,547 35,918,547

Furniture, fixtures and computer systems 20,366,303 18,493,480

Leasehold improvements 10,284,087 9,802,911

112.854,872 110,382,303

Less: accumulated depreciation (28,821,379) (23,643,153)

$  84,033,493 $ 86,739,150

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30,2020 and 2019 was $4,885,155
and $4,977,686, respectively.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

In May of 2014, FRS entered into a condominium leasehold agreement in a building located at 205 East
42nd Street in New York City for 64,303 square feet of space consisting of the entire second and third floor
and a portion of the ground floor. FRS began occupying the space in December 2014 and the agreement
expires In fiscal 2043. The interest rate is fixed at 4.20%. FRS accounted for this agreement as a capita!
lease, and as such, the related cost of $35,918,547 representing the present value of the total future
minimum lease payments due at the inception of the agreement, is included within "property, plant and
equipment, net" in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at September 30, 2020
and 2019. Depreciation expense of $1,238,571 was recorded in fiscal years 2020 and 2019. The
outstanding principal balance on the lease, inclusive of accrued interest expense, as of September 30,
2020 and 2019, is $35,892,124 and $36,246,919, respectively.

During fiscal 2015, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$22,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $22,074 and $19,867, respectively. As of September
30, 2020, the lease liability was paid off in full. The outstanding principal t^alance on the lease as of
September 30, 2019 was and $2,207. The interest rate was fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2016, CWS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $44,464, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $44,464 and $40,018, respectively. As of September
30, 2020, the lease liability was paid off in full. The outstanding principal balance on the lease as of
September 30, 2019, was $4,446. The interest rate was fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $80,785, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $80,785 and $ 68.277, respectively. The lease liability was paid off in full as of
September 30, 2020. The outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2019, was
$12,508. The interest rate was fixed at 6.97%.

19



OocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOtES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

In 2015 and 2016, ESCT obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance equipment in the amount
of $109,418, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2020, and 2019, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $47,432 and $27,671, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
leases as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $5,250 and $24,200, respectively. The maturity dates run
through May 14, 2021 with varying interest rates from 0% - 0.99%.

During fiscal 2018, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $128,298, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2020, and 2019, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $86,892 and $61,233, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30. 2020 and 2019 was $42,042 and $67,702, respectively. The maturity dates are
through June 30, 2022 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.7% and 8.00%.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$370,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $272,309 and $160,373, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $97,233 and $171,435, respectively.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capita! lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$82,264 principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, accumulated
depreciation associated with these lease agreements was $48,821 and $31,367, respectively. The
outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $34,001 and $51,454,
respectively. The maturity dates are through November 30, 2022 and the interest rate varies from 7,10%
to 7.45%.

On September 14, 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance office furniture in
the amount of $463,495; principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, the
accumulated depreciation balance was $132,427 and $66,213, respectively. The outstanding principal
balance on the lease as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $270,646 and $347,621, respectively. The
maturity dates are through June 2023 and the interest rate is 6.58%.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2020:

Year Ending September 30, 2020 Amount

2021 $ 2,159,924
2022 2,089,325
2023 1,992,851
2024 1,911,084
2025 2,192,944
Thereafter 48,574,418

Total minimum lease payments 58,920,546

Less: Amount representing interest (22,579,250)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 36,341,296
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NOTE 8 - REVOLVING LOANS

Israel Discount Bank of New York

FRS entered into a revolving loan agreement with Israel Discount Bank of New York {"IDS") to finance
working capital needs with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $25,000,000. The line is
collateralized by FEDCAP's accounts receivable and was extended during fiscal 2019 to mature on
October 17,2020. The interest rate for the revolving loan agreement is the Prime Rate. As of September 30,
2020, and 2019, FRS had borrowings on this line of credit of $23,653,273, at an interest rate of 3.94% and
5.50%, respectively. Subsequent to September 30, 2020, the balance of the revolving loan was repaid
through a refinancing with Investors Bank, which is more fully described in Note 22.

RBS Citizens Bank, N.A.

ESNY has an agreement with RBS Citizens Bank, N.A for a $3,000,000 revolving line of credit with FRS as
the co-borrower, which matured on December 15, 2018 and was subsequently extended until May 2019.
As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, ESNY had borrowings on this line of credit of $3,000,000, at an
interest rate of 3.06% and 4.1%, respectively. Subsequent to September 30, 2020, the balance of the line
of credit was repaid through a refinancing with Investors Bank, which is more fully described in Note 22.

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On October 21, 2004, TOTS entered into a $700,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of
the building located in Bronx, New York. The note was secured by the property and all of the assets of
TOTS. The interest rate is 5.0% and principal and interest of $4,960 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of November 1, 2024. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding principal balance was
$223,137 and $270,015, respectively.

On December 5, 2014, ESNY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition
of certain property located in Valhalla, New York. The note was secured by the property and is guaranteed
by FEDCAP. The interest rate is 3.66% for the first 60 months then, as of the first day of the 61st month,
the interest rate will reset to 1.75% in excess of the then bank's five-year cost of funds. In no event shall
the reset rate be less than 3.66%. Principal and interest of $32,440 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of January 1, 2025. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding principal balance was
$1.553,472 and $1,789,338, respectively. Subsequent to September 30,2020, the note was repaid through
a refinancing with Investors Bank, which is more fully described in Note 22.

On November 4, 2016, MVLE entered into a $350,000 note payable with Union Bank & Trust. The note is
secured by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate is 4.5% and principal and interest are
paid monthly. The note matured in November 2019 and was paid off In full. The outstanding principal
balance was $20,725 as of September 30, 2019.

On December 13, 2016, ESCT entered into a $18,558 note payable with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.
The note is secured by the assets of ESCT. The interest rate is 6.1% and principal and interest are paid
monthly. The note matures in December 2021. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding
principal balance was $5,188 and $9,060, respectively.

21



DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

On September 18, 2020, FRS and Fedcap Apex Acquisition, LLC purchased all of the existing assets and
liabilities of Apex Technical School for an amount of $1,851,658. As part of the initial agreement, $100(000
was paid to the seller on the acquisition date, with another $100,000 to be paid in four increments of $25,000
over the following four months beginning October 2020. The note is uncollateralized and is non-interest
bearing. The remaining $1,651,658 to be paid within 18 months after the purchase date. The outstanding
balance of this liability as of September 30, 2020 is $1,749,142.

Bonds Payable

In December 2013, FRS entered into a Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation
("Build NYC"), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of
the sixth floorof a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC
issued $18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2013A"). Monthly payments of interest
commenced in June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of
December 1, 2033. The Series A bonds were placed with IDS and, as part of the bond purchase and
continuing covenant agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB
of $4,000,000, which is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position at September 30, 2020 and 2019. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2013A bonds was $15,975,000 and $16,510,000, respectively.

In December 2010, ESNY in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation and
RBS Citizens Bank, N.A. issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds ("Series 2010").
The Series 2010 bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Irondequolt, New
York and to refinance certain ESNY debt. The Series 2010 bonds are secured by a mortgage on all
properties and improvements financed by the bond and are guaranteed by FRS, ESNY may elect to prepay
some portion or all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee as defined in the agreement. The
agreement also requires bank approval prior to ESNY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010
bonds are subject to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1,
2016 and thereafter every five years through June 1, 2036. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, the
outstanding principal balance of the Series 2010 bonds was $4,110,260 and $4,257,410, respectively.
Subsequent to September 30, 2020, the bonds were repaid through a refinancing with Investors Bank,
which is more fully described in Note 22.

On February 23, 2011, ESNY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with
the Series 2010 Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $4,099,290 and
$4,245,960 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The outstanding notional amount decreases,
in conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. ESNY remits
interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of the sum of the monthly
LIBOR rate plus 2.65% (0.11% and 1.39% at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively)). The fair value
of the interest rate swap agreement as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 reflected a liability of $876,764
and $711,129, respectively. The swap is included within other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position and is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

In December 2017, FEDCAP entered into a loan agreement with Build NYC for Build NYC to issue bonds
to finance the renovation, equipping and furnishing of the improvements of the sixth floor located at 633
Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued $9,280,000 of tax-exempt revenue
bonds ("Series 2017A") and $715,000 of taxable revenue bonds ("Series 2017B"). Monthly payments of
interest commenced in February 2018. The Series 2017A bonds have a coupon rate of 3.9% with a maturity
date of December 1, 2042. The Series 2017B bonds have a coupon rate of 4.5% with a maturity date of
December 1, 2027. The 2017A and 2017B bonds were placed with TO Bank. At September 30, 2020 and
2019, the outstanding principal balance of the Series 2017A and 2017B bonds was $9,223,326 and
$9,498,448, respectively. Subsequent to September 30, 2020, the bonds were repaid through a refinancing
with Investors Bank, which is more fully described in Note 22.
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The following is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30
2020;

Year Ending September 30, Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total

2021 $  481,699 $  1,019,828 $  1,501,527
2022 2,069,690 1,062,372 3,132,062
2023 422,171 1,105,555 1,527.726
2024 425,007 1,148,618 1,573,625
2025 132,372 1,194,107 1,326,479
Thereafter - 23,778,106 23,778.106

Total $  3,530,939 29,308,586 32,839,525

Less: current portion (1,501,527)
Less: bond issuance cost (822,043)

Long-term debt, net of current portion $  30,515,955

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

During 2020 and 2019, FEDCAP received contract advances from various New York City government
agencies. The refundable balance related to these advances as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 is
$3,620,421 and $433,397, respectively. These advances are non-interest bearing and will be offset by
future receivables within these programs.

NOTE 11 - FORGIVABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received financial assistance for property acquisition costs from Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") and the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC"). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase 34
housing entities. The principle and any interest are not due and will be forgiven upon maturity, as long as
ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were
recorded as contributions with donor restrictions that are released from restriction over the life of the
agreement.
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The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30. 2020:

Housing I
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5.375%, due unless forgiven on
October 11, 2045, secured by six rental housing units. At September 30, 2020
and 2019, $258,985 and $269,310, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

Housing II
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5.250%, due unless forgiven on April 1,
2048, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2020 and 2019,
$492,087 and $509,927, respectively, was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on
May 1, 2049, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2020 and
2019, $357,292 and $369,792, respectively, was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note,

Housing III
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on
December 1, 2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30, 2020
and 2019, $558,008 and $576,505, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on
November 30, 2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30, 2020
and 2019, $373,116 and $385,485, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

Housing IV
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on

February 15, 2053, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2020
and 2019, $867,470 and $894,230, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on
February 28, 2053, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2020
and 2019, $506,429 and $522,051, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

Total

Amount of

Original
Advance

413,000

713,600

500,000

739,900

494,740

1,070,400

624,898

$  4,556,538
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NOTE 12 . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP has leases for offices, program related facilities, and equipment expiring at various dates through
2032. The approximate future minimum lease commitments under existing operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30. 2020 Amount

2021 $ 12,120,810
2022 11,462,689
2023 7,833,871
2024 6,258,148
2025 5,136,701

Thereafter 11,202,741

Total commitments and contingencies $ 54,014,960

Certain office leases contain renewal and escalation clauses. For leases with escalation clauses, FEDCAP
recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent liability of $146,665 and
$467,126 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. In addition to the base rents, FEDCAP is
obligated to pay additional amounts for increased operating costs.

Rent expense was $11,046,926 and $11,665,549 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

FEDCAP sublets a portion of its facilities to tenants under operating leases that expire at various dates
through December 2025. For the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, rental income from these
subleases was $1,224,615 and $1,395,310, respectively. The future minimum sublease rental payments
to be received are as follows:

Year Ending September 30, 2020 Amount

2021 $ 1,628,231
2022 1,579,431
2023 1,440,344
2024 1,231,623
2025 496,640

Thereafter 64,093

Total 5 6,440,362

FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.

FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts
are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of
government contracts by government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion
of management, have a material effect on FEOCAP's financial position or change in net assets.
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Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 13 - TUITION REVENUE

FEDCAP receives funding for the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department,
administered by the Bureau of Proprietary School Supervision. Gross tuition income, which equaled net
tuition income, was $186,703 and $619,891 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, and has been included within rehabilitation and vocational programs in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

NOTE 14-NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30, 2020 and
2019;

2020 2019

For use in future periods for:
Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances
Time restricted - beneficial interest in remainder trust

Time restricted - general

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds
subject to appropriation and satisfaction of donor restrictions

(

Total

$  116,380 $ 116,380
3.413.387 3,527,300
2,686,453 2,540,391
297,767 297,700

6,513,987 6,481,771

2,072,809 2.017,769

$  8,586,796 $ 8,499,540

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds are comprised of the following as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Easter Seals - beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
ReServe endowment

CWS endowment

$ 1,990,041 $ 1,935,001
75,000 75,000
7,768 7,768

$ 2,072,809 $ 2,017,769

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 were as
follows:

2020 2019

Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances

Total

$ $ 30,841
113,913 113,913

$ 113,913 $ 144,754
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NOTE 15 • RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Members of the Board of Directors of FEDCAP are associated with a law firm that has provided legal
services to FEDCAP with fees of $162,175 and $247,849 during the years ended September 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eaton Fund. CWS leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund. Rent
paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30. 2020 and 2019 was $108,330 and $129,996
respectively.

NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions. Employees are eligible to
participate in the plan as of their employment date.

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employees working on government contracts with a defined contribution pension plan
based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon satisfactory
completion of a three-month probationary period.

Effective October 1, 1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
IRC for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In November 1, 2010,
the Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in the plan immediately
upon hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries. Employer matching
contributions fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully and immediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted to $9,708,598 and $6,792,107 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

NOTE 17-ACQUISITIONS

On December 3, 2018, FEDCAP acquired KS, a United Kingdom company through a stock purchase. KS
provides high quality job support, placement, retention and related services to people in the United
Kingdom. This combination was predicated on geographic expansion of core'-services into the United
Kingdom. The acquisition was affected by the transfer of consideration in the amount of $610,689. Goodwill
in the amount of $761,776 was recognized, which represented the consideration paid less the excess of
the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the
liabilities assumed.

On March 14, 2019, FES became a 51% majority shareholder of SS. 88 is a value-driven organization that
strives to put its customers first, understanding their needs and closely engaging with them on a personal
level to help them on their journey to employment and training. This joint venture was predicated on further
geographic expansion into specific regions within the United Kingdom. This transaction was affected without
any consideration, and as such, and inherent contribution of $381,450 was recognized which represented
the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date
fair values of the liabilities assumed. The minority interest in the joint venture Is reflected as non-controlling
interest on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.
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On September 30, 2019, ESNY acquired and became the sole member of TOTS, a nonprofit entity whose
purpose is to educate young children with developmental disabilities in an atmosphere that embraces and
accommodates individual differences and helps children to achieve in the context of the larger classroom
and school setting. The combination was predicated on similarities of missions with the Easter Seals brand
and expands the select group of population being served. This acquisition was affected without the transfer
of consideration, and as such, an inherent contribution of $4,390,122 was recognized, which represented
the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date
fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On September 18, 2020, Fedcap Apex Acquisition. LLC, executed an asset purchase agreement to acquire
substantially all of the assets of Breton International, Inc (a/k/a Apex Technical School). Apex Technical
School ("APEX") is an adult vocational technical school and offers seven certificate courses designed to
focus on basic trade skills and labor skills for its students. The acquisition purchase price was $1,851,658,
$100,000 of which was paid upon acquisition, $100,000 was to be paid over the following four months and
a $1,651,658 note payable to be paid within 18 months of the acquisition. The total consideration given
exceeded the net assets acquired by $200,000 and as such, goodwill in the amount of $200,000 was
recognized. Under the terms of the asset purchase agreement, $100,000 repayments on the note payable
are due by the 15th of the month following any month in which APEX generates positive cash flows from
operations.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisitions for the year ended September 30, 2019;

Inherent Contribution

TOTS ss Total KS Total

Cash and cash equivalents $  628,040 $  307,425 $  935,465 $  31,128 $  966,593
Accounts receivables, net 146,372 512,159 658,531 583,083 1,241,614
Contributions receivables 50,852 - 50,852 - 50,852
Inventories 259 - 259 - 259

Prepaid expenses 2,886 39,879 42,765 78,441 121,206
Other assets - - - 31,478 31,478
Property and equipment, net 3.980.000 61,405 4,041,405 61,690 4,103,095
Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities (113,016) (539,418) (652,434) (936,907) (1,589,341)
Deferred liabilities (35,256) - (35,256) - (35,256)
Notes payable (270,015) - (270,015) - (270,015)

Net assets

(deficit) $ 4,390,122 $  381,450 $ 4,771,572 $ (151,087) $ 4,620,485
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition for APEX during the year ended September 30, 2020:

Accounts receivable, net $ 2,767,727
Inventories 58,911
Prepaid expenses 209,585
Property and equipment, net 402,358
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (503,954)
Deferred revenues (1,282,969)

Net assets 5 1,651,658

NOTE 18 • CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 23% of total revenues during
the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry personnel, custodial
and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one New York State
organization, which comprised 6% and 7% of total revenues during the years ended September 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. Management does not believe that a significant
risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution.

NOTE 19 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

FEDCAP regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. FEDCAP has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities, and lines of credit. See Notes 8 and 22 for information about
FEDCAP's lines of credit.

For purposes of assessing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period,
FEDCAP considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, FEDCAP
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the following tables show the total financial assets held by FEDCAP
and the amounts of those financial assets that could readily be made available within one year of the
balance sheet date to meet general expenditures:
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months;

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contributions and grants receivable, net
Investments convertible to cash over the next 12 months

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-imposed restrictions

Minimum liquidity requirement under borrowing arrangements

Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures over
the next 12 months

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contributions receivable, net

Investments convertible to cash over the next 12 months

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-imposed restrictions
Minimum liquidity requirement under borrowing arrangements

Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures over
the next 12 months

2020

$ 24,926,770
56,965,665
2,131,974
9,317,759

93,342,168

(3,827,534)
(10,000,000)

$ 79,514,634

2019

$  9,821,462
54,652,438
4,352,341
8,703,912

77,530,153

(3,726,448)
(4,000,000)

$ 69,803,705
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 20.CARES ACT

As of September 30, 2020, FEDCAP's affiliates were granted the following loans, pursuant to the Small
Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I of the CARES
Act (the "PPP Loans"):

Affiliate Amount Date of Note Maturity Date

Easter Seals New York $  3,929,615 7/3/2020 7/3/2022

Wildcat Services Corporation 2,438,225 4/10/2020 ' 4/10/2022

MVLE 2,359,900 4/23/2020 4/23/2022

Easter Seals North Texas 1,423,400 4/17/2020 4/17/2022

Easter Seals Central Texas 1,356,335 4/27/2020 4/27/2022

Single Stop 329,967 4/10/2020 4/10/2022

Easter Seals Rhode Island 307,757 5/7/2020 5/7/2022

TOTS 231,600 5/2/2020 5/2/2022

Community Workshop Services 104,255 4/30/2020 4/30/2022

Total $  12,481,054

. The PPP Loans, which are in the form of notes payable, mature 24 months from the date of issuance and
bear interest at a rate of 1% per annum. The PPP Loans may be prepaid by FEDCAP at any time prior to
maturity with no prepayment penalties. Funds from the PPP Loans may only be used for certain costs,
such as payroll costs and occupancy expenses. FEDCAP intends to use the entire loan amounts for
qualifying expenses. Under the terms of the PPP, certain amounts of the PPP Loans may be forgiven if
they are used for qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act. When FEDCAP is legally released
from the debt, or forgiveness is granted, the extinguishment will be recognized into Income at that time.

The CARES Act also allowed for employers to defer the deposit and payment of the employer share of
payroll taxes that would otherwise be due on or after March 27, 2020, and before January 1, 2021.
FEDCAP elected to defer payment of payroll taxes under this arrangement. These deferred payroll taxes
are payable in two equal installments on December 31.2021 and December 31,2022. As of September 30,
2020, FEDCAP has recorded $2,098,963 of deferred payroll taxes, which is reflected within accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position.

NOTE 21 -COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization officially declared C0\/ID-19, a disease caused by the novel
coronavirus, a pandemic. This caused mariy local and national governments, including New York State, to
impose restrictions on business operations, travel and public gatherings. The outbreak has adversely
impacted the level of economic activity around the world and disrupted normal business activity in every
sector of the economy.

As a result of the pandemic, in mid-March 2020, FEDCAP moved certain programs to virtual program
services for the remainder of the fiscal year. In order to mitigate the impact of the pandemic, for fiscal year
2021, FEDCAP continues to offer some programs virtually while shifting to in-person programs for others,
The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. External factors,
including the duration and intensity of the pandemic, the shape of the economic recovery and its impact on
potential government funding, as well as timing and widespread adoption of vaccines, could have a material
impact on FEDCAP's future operating and programmatic results.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30, 2020 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events
through March 18, 2021, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
FEDCAP is unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, except as noted below.

On October 27, 2020,*FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank to refinance certain of its
existing debt arrangements as well as to provide for additional liquidity for operations. In connection with
the refinancing, FEDCAP entered into (1) a revolving line of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of
$42,500,000, with a maturity date of October 27,2022 and interest payable quarterly at a rate of prime plus
0.75% but no less than 4.00%; and (2) two term loans in the amounts of $6,600,000 and $6,000,000,
respectively, both with a maturity date of November 1,2030 and monthly payments of principal and interest
at a rate of 4.00%. The revolving line of credit agreement requires that FEDCAP maintain minimum
unrestricted liquid assets of $10,000,000. The proceeds from the revolving line of credit and term loans
were used to repay the existing revolving credit lines held by FRS and ESNY (as detailed within Note 8),
the FRS Series 2017A and 20178 Bonds, ESNY Series 2010 Bonds, and ESNY Mortgage (as detailed
within Note 9).
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This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
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This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
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a member of THE FEDCAP GROUP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

William Rider, Interim Chairman

Board Date 2009

Lynne Westaway, Treasurer
Board Date 8/1/2007

Nick Brattan

Board Date 6/13/2018

James Sweeney PhD
Board Date 10/1/2020

Peter Burke

Board Date 4/1/21
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WHITNEY BROWN

OUALIFICATIONS/LICENSURE

NH Licensed Acupuncture Detoxification Specialist

Certified Sober Parenting Journey Facilitator (Nov 2018)

Certified Recovery Support Worker Supervisor. (CRSW)

Mental Health First Aid National instructor (certified April 2018)

NH Licensed Nursing Assistant

EDUCATION

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE Concord. NH

Micro Credential in Addiction Studies Jun 2020 - Jun 2021

UNH PROFESSIONAL EXTENSION SCHOOL Durham, NH

Introduction to Grant Writing Sept 2019

Introduction to Basic Project Mgt. Get 2019

CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK New York. NY

Marketing Principles Fall 2010

Business Law in the Digital Age Spring 2011

BOSTON COLLEGE Chestnut Hill. MA

BA in International Studies Sept 2004 - May 2008

LOYOLA UNIV. CHICAGO /INTL. UNIV.OF BUS. & ECON.l

Semester Abroad in Beijing. China Jan 2007 - May 2007

EXPERIENCE

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS Sept 2020 - Present Portsmouth. NH

Contract Manager & CRSW

Manage contract deliverables

Qualify and quantify key performance indicators

Supen/ise staff and interns

Assist in employee professional development and licensure

Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance

Educate employees and volunteers in confidentiality practices

Support business development

Draft and submit grant proposals

Develop service integration with other Statewide workforce and recovery initiatives

Assist participants in career exploration and development

Place participants in recovery-support work environments & Recovery Friendly Workplaces

Facilitate vocational classes in SUD treatment settings

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS Feb 2020 - Sept 2020 Portsmouth, NH

Employrnent Specialist & CRSW

Offer direct peer recovery support services through motivational conversation

Facilitate and coordinate Power of Possible work readiness curriculum

Conduct psychosocial intakes

Establish and maintain client relationships on peer recovery support basis

Initiate and cultivate relationships with client referral sources

Formulate initial comprehensive service plans

Coordinate with and delegate to Job Developer in service of clients' needs

Structure referral processes

Navigate privacy and confidentiality laws of telehealth and recovery coaching practice

Draft and submit to Contractors quarterly reports

WHB 1
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WHITNEY BROWN

Formulate records retainment procedures

Contribute to creation of programmatic materials including marketing brochure

Assist with work readiness activities including resume drafting and proper interviewing

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER Sept 2018 - Feb 2020 Portsmouth, NH

Facilitator/ Parenting Journey Coord. & CRSW

Assist individuals in defining and articulating their desired pathway of recovery

Monitor and support individuals in achieving desired pathway of recovery

Motivationally interview participants to develop actionable goals

Validate and advocate for recoverees seeking expanded parental rights
Navigation of and proficiency with family court system and parental rights in NH

Leverage existing community resources to level obstacles in the way of health stability

PRIVATE DUTY HOME HEALTHCARE

Personal Care Assistant

MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES

Licensed Nursing Assistant

NEW CASTLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Member; Support Medical Team

RISE ABOVE SOBER LIVING

House Manager

GUNDERSON DETTMER. et al

Legal Secretary

Receptionist

INTERNATIONAL VENUE GROUP

USA Pavilion Server & Events Coord.

MANDARIN PRIVATE TUTORING

English Tutor

MANDARIN ORIENTAL HOTEL

Asana Server

WENTWORTH BY THE SEA HOTEL

Server

March 2017 - Sept 2018

March 2016 - March 2018

Oct 2016- May 2020

Aug - Oct 2015

Nov 2010-April 2012

Nov 2011-April 2012

Nov 2010 - Nov 2011

March 2010-Aug 2010

Nov 2009 - Feb 2010

Sept 2008 - May 2009

Summers 2002 - 2008

Kittery, ME

Manchester, NH

New Castle, NH

Nashua, NH

New York. NY

Shanghai, PRC

Shanghai, PRC

Boston, MA

New Castle. NH

WHB 2
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Dustin E. Ward

Summary
I am a motivated and determined individual looking to learn new skills while working with others I am
confident in my abilities to learn new skills quickly, as well as any operating procedures in new
environments. I work well with other team-oriented individuals and can also operate self-sufflciently if
need be. I am willing to ask questions If I do not know the answer and take direction from a supervisor. I
will maintain appropriate certifications, or acquire necessary ones for the position that I am in. I have a
tendency towards being upfront and honest, while being respectful and professional. I do my best to
meet people where they are at. I am also attending the Fedcap Leadership Academy class of 2020.

Certifications

CRSW (Certified Recovery Support Worker) License number 0079, NPI; 1912445503
BIS (basic life support) Valid until 10/2021
AMGA<WI (American mountain guides association climbing wall Instructor) Status Is valid

Experience

(Director) Safe Harbor Recovery Center, Granite Pathways November - Present
Oversight of budgeting, contracts, donations, and staff at Safe Harbor Recovery Center. Additional
responsibilities include, program development, increasing medical billing capacity, providing
administrative supervision to staff and volunteers. Developing and maintaining community relationships
and strategic partnerships with stake holders in the community. Actively attending regional task force
and public health networking meetings in the greater seacoast area. Working with Fedcap our parent
agency to develop and deliver professional development training to all staff.

(Site Manager) Fedcap Inc. Breaking The Cycle June 2020 - November 2020
While working for Breaking The Cycle, I manage 6 staff members and oversee the Sanford Maine
ocation. I conduct one on one supervisions with each staff bi-weekly. I conduct morning team huddles
to brief the staff on priority goals for the day. I complete and enter staff payroll for each pay period I
attend all agency wide trainings and leadership team meetings via Zoom. I coordinate greater agency
efforts with the leadership team of Breaking The Cycle. I send monthly reports to the leadership team
with updates on the Sanford office. I perform monthly customer service observations of each respective
job role in the office. I help staff work through difficult interactions with participants that may be In crisis
and provide support. I document all participant Interactions in FedcapCARES, the programs case
management software.

(Manager) The Doorway at Granite Pathways January 2019 - June 2020
In February of 2019 I was promoted to Manager of the Nashua Doorway. I managed 6-7 staff and had
oversight on dally operations. I conducted individual supervision with staff, led staff meetings
conducted case review, and fielded operational questions when staff was unsure. I also condu'cted
comrnunity outreach and attended local regional meetings such as continuum of care and the Mayor's
opioid task force meetings. I gave various presentations about The Doorway program throughout the
community and Nashua Public Health region. In August of 2019 I was asked to be the manager of both
Nashua and Manchester Doorway programs. I officially took the role in the beginning of September of
2019 as Manager for both programs. This position consisted of managing over 20 staff in three offices in
two major cities. Managing the Manchester office included being on call 7 days a week including
holidays until 11pm to field questions and respond to emergency or crisis situations as they would arise.
During this time, we streamlined daily billing to increase revenue and implemented FedcapCARES.
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Manchester Doorway was a complex, high paced working environment, we saw on average 150-200
clients a month. We Implemented a new training process to ensure fully trained staff. I performed
additional duties as assigned.

(Recovery Specialist) Granite Pathways Regional Access Points Service February 2018 - January 2019
Assisted clients with substance use disorder or SUD in finding treatment within the NH continuum of
care network. Documented all Interactions in WITS software and conducted follow-up within our
operating procedure. Assisted case managers in follow-ups with treatment providers to help assist
clients in further services. Worked with mobile crisis response teams when necessary. Assisted with
additional duties as assigned.

(Personal Trainer) The Phoenix (Phoenix Multisport) April 2017 - December 2017
Worked as a personal trainer assisting people with SUD at all stages of recovery. Coordinated outdoor
activities such as surfing, hiking, and camping. Conducted community outreach and spoke at various
treatment facilities to raise awareness. Worked one on one with team members and conducted group
fitness training sessions. Helped team members in times of emotional crisis and encouraged them to
grow.

(Recovery Specialist^ Granite Pathways Regional Access Points Service September 2016 - April 2017
Assisted clients with SUD in finding treatment within the NH continuum of care network, Documented
all interactions in WITS software and conducted follow-up within or operating procedure. Conducted
outreach within the community and gave presentations at various public health meetings within the
areas I was assigned.

(Unit Manager) Substance Abuse Residential Rehabilitation Treofmenf Program Nov. 2015 - Feb. 2016
Worked as the unit manager for this program of the VA Boston Healthcare System. Provided a peer
support role. Orientation of new patients to the program, safety checks of patient bedrooms and
medication storage to ensure compliance with accreditation standards. Ordering food and stocking the
kitchen for the patients as well as restocking the office.

(Recovery Vehicle Operator, Mechanic, Maintenance Supervisor) New Hampshire Army National Guard
February 2008 - September 2014
I supervised maintenance section with four Soldiers, and I was responsible for maintaining equipment
worth more than 12 million dollars. Instructed, supervised, and trained Soldiers on tasks such as
equipment inspection, repair, and documenting deficiencies on appropriate forms. Trained Soldiers for
field and combat operations while attending Military training courses to Improve my techniques and
eadership style in accordance with Army Regulation. While in service I attended classes such as Combat
life saver, Master driver. Vehicle recovery, and a Warrior leadership course. I deployed in 2010-2011 In
support of Operation New Dawn to Kuwait/Iraq.

Education

Fedcap Leadership Academy class of 2020
Southern New Hampshire University, Psychology with a focus in Addictions, 2019-present (Online
classes estimated completion date 2022. Current GPA: 3.89)
University of Massachusetts Boston, Addictions Counseling Education Program 2015-2016
Plymouth Regional High School, 2005
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Terri Varney

To obtain a position in health and human services for Individuals with substance use disorders and/or

mental illness, and provide care services to individuals, families, schools, hospitals and communities.

Work Experience

Recovery Care Specialist
Hope on Haven Hill - Rochester, NH

July 2019 to June 2020

Assisted female residents with daily living and recovery skills.

Resident Assistant

Southeastern NH Services - Dover, NH

February 2018 to June 2019

Conducted psychoeducational support groups in recovery and life management skills.

Aduit Education instructor

York Adult Education - York, ME

2015 to 2017

Taught work readiness and college success skills to young adults and adults in work transition.

Disability Services Coordinator
Great Bay Community College

2008 to 2014

Advised students, conducted workshops with staff and faculty on disability awareness, determined

eligibility for services, provided learning accommodations and maintained confidential records.

Education

Certified Recovery Support Worker 2020 in Substance Use Disorders
Connecticut CommunityRecbvery Services - CT.

2020

University of New Hampshire

2010

MASTER OF EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts - Lowell, MA

2006
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Skills

•  Interpersonal communication

• organizing

• collaborating

• facilitating learning

• Academic Advising

• Addiction Counseling

•  Individual / Group Counseling

•  Intake Experience

• Curriculum Development

• Group Therapy

• Social Work
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DO'MNA. K.E.E.FE

EDUCATION I Trinity High School, Manchester, NH
Springfield College - BS Human Services Summa Cum Laude 1995

EXPERIENCE 12/1/2015-Present

DIRECTOR OF NEW INITITIVES - GRANITE PATHWAYS NH

Granite Pathways is a subsidiary of Redcap. As the Director of New
Initiatives, I manage the local day to day infrastructure and work with
referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing, community relations and development. I was also
instrumental with the startup program development and implementation of
8 programs in NH, other duties include: staff supervision, communication
management with our corporate office and BOD communications.

9/2013-12/1/2015

NE DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS & CLIENT SERVICES

FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES

As the NE Director of Admissions & Client Services, I supervised the
admissions process throughout the Fedcap NE regions working with all
the referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing & client services. In this role, I worked in Rl to
systematically manage the federally mandated Interim Settlement
Agreement that shut down segregated workshops for the DD population.
The Fedcap team in Rl developed programs and systems to train the IDD
population to be gainfully employed in the community. This effort is
nationally recognized as Fedcap continues to educate other national
agencies via our Rl, National Center Institute for System Improvement
seminars available on the Fedcap website.

1995-2013

DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS

EASTER SEALS NH, ME. NY, VT
As Director of Admissions for the Adolescent Residential/Educational

Psychiatric & Neurobehavioral Programs I was responsible for the
admissions and transitions process within the continuum of care
programs as well as the final discharges from Easter Seals. I managed
referrals from various states and agencies where I applied knowledge of
differing state and agency placement requirements/laws. In addition to
working with families I managed the monthly billing, file retention,
census/wait list for 6 satellite intensive residential group homes and over
75 foster homes. I implemented many systems to manage the complex
admission/discharge process.
1992-1995

City of Manchester NH School Department
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Served as a liaison between team members - parents, teachers,
administrators and students. I was responsible to implement behavior
plans/procedures to transition special education students back into the
traditional classroom from an alternative/self-contained classroom. I also
worked closely and supported low income families through the lEP
process at the inner-city schools.

1988-1992

SERESC - BIRCHWOOD HIGH SCHOOL

Aided in developing class curriculums in this alternative setting for the
Seriously Emotionally Disturbed students. Taught classes under
supervision of teacher, organized field trips and participated in all goal-
oriented programs working 1:1 with the students if needed.

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONSrrrainings

1997 - Easter Seals President's Meritorious Award - for outstanding
service by an employee

2000 - Easter Seals NH. VT, NY, Employee of the Year - Chosen from
1,200 employees

2003 - Easter Seals Service First Award - Customer Service Award

2004 - Crisis Intervention and Physical Restraint Training

2005 - State of NH DCYF/DJJS Directors Award - this award is given
yearly to one NH individual who goes above and beyond to help the state
workers solve their difficult cases

2015 - Mental Health First Aid USA

2016 - CCAR Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers Program

2016 - NAMI NH's Connect Suicide Prevention Training

2016 - Crisis Intervention in the Workplace

2016 - Breaking the Stigma - Language Training

2017 - First Aid/CPR and Narcan Training

2019 - Effective Performance Management Strategies Workshop

PAGE 2
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Tara Mercado

Summary of Qualifications

ICD-IO-CM, •EPIC 'PCIS 'PATCOM •MEDISENSE •Meditech •Carevoyant •eClinical Works

LMR/Data view • Ebridge ̂ RIS • ScerlS 'PaySpan •Emdeon "CPU •QSl 'Wits •Cerner •Microsoft

Office

Medicare •Medicaid •United Healthcare •Cigna •Anthem •Harvard Pilgrim •Tufts 'BCBS
•Commercial/Workers Comp Insurances • Self-Pay •State Contracts

Education

Seacoast Career School

Manchester, NH Health Claims Certificate

New Hampshire Community Technical College

Studied Design

Central High School

2007

2003-2004

1999-2003

Professional Background

Financial/Budget Contract Manager
Fed Cap/Granite Pathways • Manchester NH November 2018 to current

Create billing operations and structure for multiple State and Federal funded programs

Oversight and management of billing staff and workflow

Maintain stable cash flow and reduced AR over 30 days

Act as a liaison between multiple recovery programs, billing company and corporate office

Sort and process incoming correspondence for all programs

Responsible for communication with clients, vendors, funders and insurance companies

Developed/Maintain multiple spreadsheets with high volume data entry and measuring metrics
Review, code and submit vendor invoices and employee expenses to accounts payable

Maintain risk management processes to ensure revenue is on track and not miscalculated

Track multiple program budget lines/expenses to ensure budgets are maximized

Billing Representative

XRAY Professional Association • Concord NH October 2017 to October 2018

Ancillary Billing

High volume posting of payments

Electronic paper billing/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds

Answer high volume patient calls and review monthly statements

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Communicate with hospital/facility staff and or responsible parties of patients
Research payer policies and covered policies via websites
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Billing Representative

US Labs • Lakeville MA August 2016 to April 2017

Lab Billing

Assist in reducing A/R for multiple payers over 30 days

Data, Insurance, Order Entry

Electronic paper billing/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds

Answer patient calls and review monthly statements

Sort and process incoming correspondence
Research payer policies via payer websites

Billing Representative II

Mass General Physicians Organization Bedford, NH December 2012 to July 2016

Physicians Billing

Assist in reducing A/R for multiple payers over 30 days

Identify trends or inconsistencies with payers

Electronic and paper billing/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds, credits

Maintain quality communication with A/R managers within organization

Resolve customer service inquiries for patient requests

Assist GPM with account resolutions with projects or patient/provider concerns

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Research payer policies via payer websites

Claims Resolution Associate

Affiliated Professional Services • Wareham, MA October 2011 to October 2012

Physicians Billing

Responsible for high volume collections via electronic remittance as well as paper denials
Complete monthly aging over 45 days on ail accounts to improve cash flow
Obtain ail billing information, authorizations, and referrals via phone email and hospital systems

Process mail, payer denials, attorney requests, PIP exhaust letters, bankruptcies, self-pay statements

Perform follow up on outstanding claims

Process paper and/or electronic appeals

Accounts Receivable/Collections Specialist

Easter Seals • Manchester NH December 2007 to June 2010

Residential and Physicians Billing

Responsible for high volume collections {65 to 70 calls per day)

Complete monthly aging reports over 30 days to improve cash flow

Maintain electronic, web, paper and statement billing for several group homes

Perform data charge entry for residential stays, schooling and special stays

Obtain all billing information, authorizations, and referrals via phone email and hospital systems

Research contracts thru state funded insurances, private carriers, self-pay and responsible school districts

Maintain monthly reports on revenue adjustments
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•  Research variances

•  Report monthly cash projections for all insurance carriers

Achievement/Honors

•  Recipient of the President's Award at Easter Seals. Developed and implemented a new procedure for

current staff and state of NH workers to follow. This procedure eliminated revenue adjustments and

saved resources for collecting payments on outstanding claims deemed un-collectable. This procedure

changed the department goal of outstanding claims from 60 days to 30 days. The result was increased

cash flow and reduction In A/R over 90 days.

•  Completed - Effective Performance Management Strategy Workshop - 2019
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PATRICIA M. REED

NEW HAMPSHIRE STATE DIRECTOR

QUALIFICATIONS

Demonstrated executive with more than 30 years' experience serving individuals with disabilities in

children and youth services, addiction services, and residential treatment programs
EXPERIENCE

2018 New Hampshire State Director, Granite Pathways, inc.

•  Responsible for overall program management, program expansion and development, fiscal
integrity, quality compliance and external relationships in New Hampshire for Granite Pathways,

Inc.

2017 to 2018 Consultant

•  Provide system analysis and consultation for a variety of entities providing services to individuals

with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and behavioral health needs

•  Led three NH regional agencies serving this population to plan for youth with challenging

behaviors to receive adult services to meet their needs in a community based context

2015 to 2017 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Lakeview Management, Inc., Austin TX

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty

Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program

development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2015 Executive Director, Lakeview Neurorehabilitation Center, Inc., Effingham, NH

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty

Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program

development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2014 to 2015 Children's Director, NH Bureau of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH

•  Responsible td provide leadership in planning and development of the state children's behavioral

health system, act as liaison between CMHC Children's programs and the state office for program

and client specific information exchange and problem solving

•  Provided support to implement statewide initiatives

•  Represented the Department of Health and Human Service on the Children's Behavioral Health

Collaborative Executive Committee, Steering Committee and various workgroups

•  Co-coordinated the Safe Schools/Health Students grant with the Department of Education
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2011 to 2014 Project Director, Health Profession Opportunity Project, NH Office of Minority Health and
Refugee Affairs, Concord, NH

•  Directed and implemented a five-year, $12 million-dollar healthcare workforce development
grant to recruit, train and place low income individuals in healthcare jobs

•  Developed RFP's, negotiated and managed contracts, and monitored grant and contractor
budgets

• Worked closely with regional health care providers to understand their workforce needs;
partnered with educational programs and other community groups to ensure that the individuals
are well prepared to meet employer expectations for technical and soft skills

•  Provided leadership and direction to develop innovative strategies to overcome system based
barriers to education, training and self-sufficiency for NH citizens

•  Collaborated with other NH workforce programs to efficiently use available resources to achieve
shared employment goals

2002 to 2010 Senior Director of Clinical Services, Easter Seals of NH, Manchester, NH

•  Provided leadership and oversight for the design, organization and delivery of clinical services for
Easter Seals NH, including the development of Autism Services, an adolescent program for dual
disorder treatment, residential DBT program and management of a residential treatment
program for adults with substance abuse issues

•  Provided oversight for the DCYF Administrative Case Review contract

•  Developed and monitored budgets for programs

• Worked collaboratively with Easter Seals Development to write federal, state, and foundation
grants, progress reports and budget monitoring

•  Developed relationships with funders and providers in NH and other states to pursue program
development and effective treatment and services for individuals and families

EDUCATION

•  1982 - 1987 Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA: Graduate School of Arts and Science Department of
Sociology (Four Year Doctoral Work)

•  1982 B.A. Norte Dame College, Manchester, NH Major- Behavioral Science/ Minor- English Summa
Cum Laude, Dean's List

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Contracted to assist staff and clients on three community based residential facilities in the development
of client self-government programs through participant observation and didactics. Responsible for both
training and evaluation. Sites included Seacoast Mental Health Center- Portsmouth, NH and Greater
Manchester Mental Health Center- Manchester, NH. Responsible for leading the research design, data
collection and reporting for the evaluation of a partial Hospital Program. The primary methodology was
intensive interviewing.
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Granite Pathways Job Launch
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training

K.ev Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Whitney Brown Contract

Manager/Employment
Specialist

$21.00 hourly 100% $43,680.00

Dustin Ward Director, Safe Harbor $56,000.00 40% $22,400.00

Teresa Vamey Recovery
Coach/Employment
Specialist

$18.50 hourly 25% $7,215.00

Donna Keefe Director of New Initiatives $77,696.00 40% $31,078.40

Tara Mercado Billing Specialist $55,000.00 20% $11,000.00

Patricia Reed Executive Director $105,000.00 15% $15,750.00
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KatJ* S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9544 1.800-852.3345 Ext. 9544

Fix:603-27M332 TOD Access: 1.800.73S2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 3, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $204,962 from
$333,974.48 to $538,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2020 to
September 29, 2021 effective retroactive to September 29, 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The Individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater TItton

Area Family
Resource

Center,
Tillon/NH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$138,740 $88,323 $227,063

0: 08/14/19,
Item #10 '

Granite

Pathways.
Concord/NH

226900-

8001
Statewide $195,234.48 $116,639 $311,873.48

0: 09/18/19,

Item #19

Total: $333,974.48 $204,962 $538,936.48

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

Tht Dtportmenl of Health and Human Seruicet' MUticn i$ to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cifizeru to achieve health and independence..
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Hja Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Rape 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because sufficient funds in State Fiscal Year 2021 were not
available In the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) In approving New
Hampshire's requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the
state appropriations were deferred.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide vocational training supports and
workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders who are in treatment and
recovery settings ar)d who are seeking to join and/or rejoin the workforce. Employment has long
been recognized as a criticarelement in the recovery process, providing people with hope and
opportunity to move forward in the recovery process determined by principles of self-
determination.

Approximately 100 Individuals will be served from September 29. 2020 to September 29
2021.

This vendors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, Including creating vocational profiles In order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendors will link tfie individual to
appropriate vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid
the individual on the path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to.
assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, which
will be collected in coordination with the Regional Doomays. The State Opioid Response grant
requires that all Individuals served receive a comprehensive assessment at several time intervals,
specifically at intake, six (6) months after intake, and upon discharge. Through collaborative
agreements with the vendors under these contracts, the Regional Doorways gather data on clientT
related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice involvement, employment, and
housing needs at the time intervals listed above. The data collected enables the Department to
measure short and long-term outcorr>es associated with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives
and to determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using the following performance
measures;

•  The Contractors will ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided
training programs.

•  The Contractors will ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuals gain
employment.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in
recovery seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation ar^j consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain in recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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His ExceDency. Govemof Chrtetopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 3 of 3

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788, FAIN #71081685 and FAIN #71083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

0S-9S-92.920S10.7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OERT OF HH5:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Fund* CFDA *93.768 FAIN H79T108168S and HTOTIOSSSZfi

Greater TIKon Area Family Retourca Cenier. TiliorVNH Vendor*
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tide Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 5110,992 (540.911) 570,081
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 527.748 SO 527.748
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 50 529.234 529.234
2021 102/500731 Contracts tor Program Services 92057048 50 566,667 566.667
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 533,333 533,333

Sub Total 5138.740 588.323 5227.063

Granite Pattrftevs. Ccncord/NH' •

Vendor*

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 5149,896 (577.213) 572,683
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 545.338 SO 545.338
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 50 $43,852. 543.652
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 5100.000 5100.000
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 SO 550.000 550,000

Sub Total 5195.234 5116,639 5311,673

Overall Totall S333.974I $204,9621 • SS38.936I

Anachrnant • Bureau of Behavioral Heahh

Finartdal Deieii

Page l of l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for
Individuals with OUD Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1') Is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and .Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 10
Ferry Street, Suite 308. Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on Septembe'r 18. 2019. (Item #19). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l,
Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language. Paragraph 2. Renewal, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$311,873.48

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 4. Reporting, by adding Subsection 4.2. to read: ■

4.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 5. Performance Measures, by adding Subsection
5.4. to read:

5.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services. Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded Initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

6.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways
for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality laws.
Including 42 CFR Part 2.

r"M.6
ulials IGranite Pathways Amendment#! Contractor Irv'lials

RFP-201&-BDAS.12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date^/®/^®^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

6.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date. ■

6.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds
and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department. and SAM MSA
requirements.

6.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

6.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on Medicaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

6.8. ■ The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs prograrn for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

6.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use. treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

6.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department. State of NH. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration SAMHSA. and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

6.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding' that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context Includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders. '

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

6.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

6.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

6.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

6.12.1. Invoicing:

1_^
Granite Pathways Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 2 ol 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

7.

6.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.12.3. Billing.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
Modify Exhibit B-1. Budget Form by reducing the total budget amount by $77,213; which Is
identified as unspent funding of which $43,852 is being carried forward to fund the activities In this
Agreement for SFY 21 {September 30. 2020 through December 31. 2020), as speciHed in Exhibit
B-3 Amendment #1 NCE and for SFY 21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) in the amount
of $33,361, as specified In Exhibit B-4 Amendment U 1 SOR II.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 NCE. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR H, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Granite Pathways

RFP-20.19-BDAS.12-WORKF-01-A01

Amendment #1

Page 3 of 5

Contractor Initialsr
01

jta

Dajg 1/6/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective September 30, 2020, upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

br:

1/19/2021

Dili ^ ^
Title; Director

1/6/2021

Date

GRANITE PATHWAYS

OoeuSlsMd by.

4MOF2A»«4004C«...

Name: Kenneth Brezenoff

Title: General counsel

Granite Pathways

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01 -A01

Amendment

Page 4 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human,Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/26/2021

•^OecvStent^ by;

Date Nam^cat^c^rVhe Pinos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Palhways Amendmenl#l

RFP-2019-BOAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 5 of 5
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^ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,

by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded

on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance

Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient in accordance with 2
CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3. . Thede minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget Form through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

.  4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows;

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the
MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,

charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

iliate I

•OS

mA
Granle Pathways Eidiibll B Amendmont Contractor initials {
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

authorized expenses incun"ed in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure: •

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger shoving revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430{i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time, tracking templates, which are available to the

Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported:

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for. employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

Granite Pathways Exhibit 8 Amendment #1 Contractor Initials 1

RFP-2019-B0AS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Pege2of4 Dale 1/19/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the Insurances billed. Remittarice Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.8. information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue' and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for. reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions Included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. in lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
meiissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be wlthheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Amendment #3,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

14. Audits

Grsnile Pelhway$ 8 Amendmeni 01 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the

following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of

$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

■  14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days

after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the.

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independerit CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the"

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be

required, at a minimum, to submit annual, financial audits performed by an

independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

—09

"Granile Palhways ErfiibilBAmefxJmeol#! Conlractor IniUals

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page4ol4 Data 1/19/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

DocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8C84-9230SOOC0698

CwajMjv tana: CfiflM* PMhwaym

ewdgN R*qun( for. Wartiena R»a«nM* t Vmclen^ TiaM^

BudgH PotM SFYtl «yMrm.i2r)l<2S (MCC)

N«w HampsDIra OepsruneiM of Heslth and Hwman SorvtcM
COMPLY ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Priyiw l»»<#-tan^i »WiOOe

Lin* H*w

T371 rcss"

>e.Moce

8.4MOO

Tsa-
Coouo^^KS^i Mmcfc

■733"
2«,uoee

"TS" J
MASOOO

>■ Cnn»>«jm
4. EqUBWwtw:'
i. "

iso.eo rjO.M
B.496.W

A Tt«
Oeeuo«»ey
C»m4rtCiiiMii»» '

I3&.00
AMOCO

moo
AOOO.M

lU.OO
3MO.OO

1M.M
AOOO.M

»A Uf\au njC«T
H. StiflEaucWiBwtwd TnWna

S4ifccp^»int/«fli—Tmi«i

»4.4S

3. Q9m
!!>*«> A» A P»a«i4e< Ditaa A«OO.M iMSis

IQTAI.
rare*

31.KA4) AMA<»
10.0%

ilUUI

CrwiAt PtfMvfa
RFP-»t««)AS-12-WORKF-OI-Aei
EjOiM Aib«<Om 11 NCE

Ad

1/19/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

DocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF-40E&44F6-BCB4-923050DC069B

UM e-4 ft SDR ■

N*w Ksmpshirt 0*pwtm*<n of tnd Human Saivicaa
COKPLETC ONE BUDGET POftM PGR EACH BUDGET PEmOD

WcvUiMC* RmAw** a VaeaUoMl TfaMng thapiin tor >'i<ilifu«<i wMh OUO

OudoMPwto* SFYlt ftt/OIRI-aCOOm (SOtX)

"^eU^rsgraoi Ca*i
toiartei -ORMt "BCScT

^SSiaSer Sharaf MMeh
T33-

t. TeMlStoirin»i9«i tftiOOOO _% egtoo 00 ^ oa.too.co
>. Etitotow Otxtoi ia,»3.00 « t«.2M.OO J ta.TM.eo
X CMuOnto I.MOOO t.SOOOO _LSOO.CO
*. CaulBtfw:

i^JsefsL
X 'itw^ an.oo ef0.oo
LOewww Acooeo
X CiiatoCuiM'aw

a.

utxte

H. StoBEducWionard TitofiQ

IX S»tocerto»ai/i>ar»^t>wai
ta, OOtor (»»aa*c •«««?
Ifiar»e< Am A e< l>«e» a^OM.ao •.090.90 goegjo

lamaTOTAl.

ln*Mi Am a PwcmM •< CHrMt
UMil liU.U -mm

Ctonlto 0»eim»'|«
ftFP-201»«tMS>12-V<On(MII-A01
EiOMO^fMnttBaMai SOA ■

PaOilafi

Ceoaaetor Mtoto.

Ctot>

I V

1/19/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

DocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F&^CB4-92305bDC0698
PI-I 2.17 0ftS

Jcirrejr A. Mc/crs
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Katjt S. Foj
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AJ^ HUMAN SERVICES

DmS!ONFOR BEHAl^IORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9544 I-800-8S2-334S CxL 9544

Fax:6G3.27M332 TDDAcceu: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 28. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services Divisiori for Behavioral Health, to enter
into agreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor # 226900-B001). 10 Ferry Street, Suite 319, Concord.
NH 03301, in an amount not to exceed $195,234.48, to provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder, effective upon date of Governor and Council
approval, through September 29. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriatiori of funds in the future
operating budget,' with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Conlrads for Prog Svc 92057040 $149,698.32

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $45,338.16

Total: $195,234.48

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational training supports
and workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settings who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. This vendor was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health
and Human Services' web site from November 15. 2018 through December 13. 2018. In addition, a
notice was sent by email to a wide variety of stakeholders and potential vendors. The Department
received four (4) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals vrith
program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and
weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Score Summary is attached. Employment has long been
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recognized as a critical element in the recovery process, providing people with hope and opportunity to
move foryirard in the recovery process'that is determined by principles of self-determination.

This request represents the final one (1) of two (2) contracts to provide vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs. The Governor and Executive Council previously approved
one (1) contract on August 14. 2019 (Item #10).

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SOR) grant opportunity. New Hampshire
wit! use evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery, and prevention services to Individuals
with QUO in NH. These critical funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
on the opioid crisis as well as expand the. capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping
individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and stem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017,
NH had 468-opioid-related deaths, 2,774 .emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6,684
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 Individuals per 100,000 population. The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which identified gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with OUD. The services provided through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate-connections with the multiple workforce initiatives for individuals with SUp/OUD that have
emerged over the past two years, including the Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace Program and
the Department of Labor'National Health Emergency Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation" and Opportunity Act of 2014.

This agreement will.require the vendor to integrate workforce readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendor will link the individual to appropriate
vocational trainings;with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the Individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to assistance with resume writing,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is. a robust level of client-specific, data that will l>e available, which will
be collected in coordination with the Regional Hubs that were approved by Governor and Executive
Council at the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SOR grant requires that all individuals served receive a
comprehensive assessnient at several time intervals, specifically at,Intake, six (6) months and upon
(discharge. Through collaborative agreements with the vendor under this contract, the Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice
involvement, employment,- and housing needs at the time intervals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

Approximately one hundred (100) Individuals will be served from'Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29, 2020.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon'satisfactory delivery of

I sen/ices, available.funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. -

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals In recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain in
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and the Honorabte Council
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recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities. .

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from, the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds t)ecome no longer available, General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

I

Jwey A. Meyers
Commissioner

77t< Deparlmtnt 0/ Hcollfi and Human Scruitts' Mission is to /oin communities and families
in prouiding opportunities for eitixens to nchieue health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Hearth and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summaiy Scoring Sheet

Worlcforce Reetflnoss and Vocational Training
Programa for Individuals wHth Opiold Uso

Olsordar

RFP Name

RFP.2019-BDAS.12-WORKF

RFP Number. Reviewer Names

1.
JUI Burtte. Chief of Prevention &

Educational Services. BDAS

Bidder Name
Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

Melissa Gtrard. Otv Behavioral Hith

Business Admtnistrator 111

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center 750 659

2 Gene Patrtoda, Oiv FamSy Assist.
Bus'mss & Industry Mgr.

2
' Headrest, Inc. 750 SIS

. Barry Sandberg, Program
' Spedalisi IV. Oiv Behavioral Hith

^ Granite Pathways,.Inc. 750 583

Undy l^^ier. Resources &
Development Adrrtin BOAS

4
Family Resource Center at Gorham 750 443

6.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcnloG S/a^S)
Subject; Wbricfofce RiadineM A. Vocational Trtunint PfoemmaYcf Indivtduals with OUD/RfP.2019.BDAS.12-WORKF.OI.

Notice: Thii egreement end ail of its sftachmenlf ihsll become public upon lubmiuion to Goventor end
Executive Council for approve!. Any information thttt is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the egency'and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stete of New Hampshire and the Contrectpr hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTinCATION.

l.I Slate Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Servico

1.2 State Agency Address
-129 Pleasant Street

Concord. >fH 03301-38S7

1.3 Corttractor Name

Gmnitc Pathways
1.4 Cbmractor Address

IOFenySi,Sie30e.3iq
Concord, NN. 03301

I.S Contractor Phone

Numba

603-968-3810

1.6 Account Number
05-95-92.920510-7040

1.7 Completion Date

September 29.2020

1.8 Price Limitation

S193,234.48

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contraiw.Sifptoro^ 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signsory

\fp e4-rt r* a V V* xmvtriR^ivWvU wi
1.13 Acknowledgement: Stiteof .Coumyof U .

On ^ ,teforeihd-uhdermgned6fneer, persorrilly.dpd<tafdd the person identified in blM.k l.l2,orfiaii^fa'ciorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and ackribwledged that c^e .executed this dpcummt in the capKity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 SignaturcofNotsryPublicor JusticcofthePeace OONHAIQEEFE

1.)3.'2 Name end Title ofNotary or Justice of the Peace ^

C>'P ̂  vrtc^ov- o5_ (^^uj*3u vv'A-V r. .Vv .
1.14 Stete Agency Signoturt 1.15 Name and Titleof State Agency'Sigha'ibiy.

1.16 Approval by ihcN.H. Ocp^menlof Administralion, Division of Pcrionskl (l/opplicobie)

By: . Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Torm, SubstarKC and Execution) (if cppUcobU)

1.18 Approval b/fheCov^or oi^ Executive Council (7/opp/(coh/ej

By: On:

Page 1 of 4
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FORM rOnvfBER P-37 (vcrtloo 5/8/15)
Subjeci; Workforce Readiness A Vocational Traininfi Programs for Individuek with OlJD/RFP.2Q19-BDAS-12-WORKf-01

Notice: This egreemeni and oil of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must,
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:'

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 *3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite Pathways
1.4 Contracior Address

10FcrTySi,Ste^,Sl^
Concord, NH, 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-96S-3610

1.6 Account Number

2974.34-ROOI

1.7■Completion Dale

September 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

5195,234.48

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Numba
603.271-9631

I.H ContractorSigjwnrrO".... t.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

t) \ fP<?4-A r- r^? \m\«AQ*-VivUiVj »v
1.13 Acknowledgement: Slhtc of • County of ^ ■

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block I.I2, or satisfactorily '
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 SignalureofNolary Public or Justice of the Peace DONNA KCEFC

Notary Public - Nm Hnmrmtifm w

'1.13.2 Name and Title ofNotery or Justice of the Peace • m •

fsvwAA ^ \r^C.4tO>r- CT \a"A-» r. ^ .
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by iKe N.H. Depanmem of Administration, Division of PcriOfta!kl 0/applicable)

By: Director, On:

i.l7 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) Of oppUcoble)

1.18 Approval b/fhc Go%j/fmor aM Executive Council (7/o/>p/»co6/e)
By: On:

Page I of 4
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J. EMPU)YMENT OF contractor/services TO
BE PERFORMED. The Sutc of New Hsmpshire, acting
through the agency identiried in block 1.1 fStaie"), engages
contrtictor ideniified in block 1.3 ("Contraclor^) to perforrn,
and the Conirttctor shall perform, the work or saieofgoods, or
both, identiried and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and

* Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties .
hereunder, shall become efTectivcon the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, In which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date (he
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
I. M ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTeciive Dale, all Services performpd by the Contractor prior
to (he EfTectivc Date shall be performed at (he sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become efTective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or'Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. .
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ell obligations of (he State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymerits hereunder, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any.
payments hereunder in Mce&s of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become ovaileble, ifever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such lerminaiion. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account Identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAVMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described In
EXHIBIT B which is incorporotcd'hefcin by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services: The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset ftt>m any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreement
(hose liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with ell aatutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
Jaws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
infonriaiion to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During (he term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, ogc, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afftrmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 Ifihis Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as suppleittcntcd by the
regulations of (he United Steles Department of Labor (41 -
C.F.R. Pan 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliatrce with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contntcior shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necosary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed end otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of -
. this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion bate In block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in o combined elTon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stole'
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4

Coniracior Initially^
Date
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Agreement. This provision shall survive lennirtatidn of this
Agreement.

7.3 TTie Contrscting OfTicer ̂ >ecined in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shail be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, ■
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of iheToDowing acts or omissions of the
Contntctor shall constitute on event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saitsfectorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any orte, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effeciive two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default ond suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from.thc date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
(he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached'and pursue anyofits
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the .
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts,-sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for (hot purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 •A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wHilen approval of the Stale.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, (he Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (1S) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including (he date of termination. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of (he Termination
Report shall be Identical to those of any Final Rcpon
described in the attached EXHIBrr A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an indc^ndent contractor, end is neither an agent nor
an employee of (he Slate. Neither the Contracior nor any of its

.  ofTicera, employes, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to Its employees.

n.ASSICNMENT/DELECATlON/SUBCONtRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State.. None of (he Services shail be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any arid all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of (his Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, ci its sole expense, obtain and .
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and,maintain in force, (he following-
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in omounis
of not less than SI.OOO.OODper occurrtnce and S2,000,000
aggregate; and

'  14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering oil
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an (imount not
(ess than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State ofNew Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contrector shaJl furnish (o the Contniaing OfHcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, t cer!iric&ie<s)
of insumnce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contntctor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate($) of
insurance for oil renew8l(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cenificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be anached and ore
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate<s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring (he insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer ideniificd in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies (u^ warrants thai the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSa chapter 281 -A
(" Workers' Compensaiiort
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with aciivities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting OfTicer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
irworporitcd herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce tiny provisions hereof afier any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
gi^n in blocks 1.2 end 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only afier approval of such
amendment, waiver or dischvge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no*

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is'binding upon and
inures to (he benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

' 20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
consuued to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and (he words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of (he
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBfT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

13. SEVERAfilLITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agrdemem and
understanding between (he parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
Contractor tnitials^$f^

Date



OocuSign Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

OocuSign Envelope ID: 3aA62ACP-40E8^Fe-8CB4-S23050DC0698

New Hampshire Oepahbrtent of Health and Human Services
Woflrforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative, action by the New
. Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact.
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For th^ purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness, and Vocational Training
Programs for a minimum one hundred (100) individuals with Opiold Use
Disorder (OUD) in the Seacoast r^ion.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce
Readiness and Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and
recovery services when applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming to individuals
with Opiold Use Disorder (OUD) who are receiving treatment or recovery
support services. The Contractor shall ensure workforce readiness
programming includes, but is not limited to;

2.2.1. Job specific skills training.
\

2.2.2. Resume and cover leher assistance.

2.2.3. Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skills.

2.2.5. Budgeting and financial management skills.

2.2.6. Customer service training.

2.2.7. Job retention approaches.

2.2.6. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and interview assistance, including mock interviews.

^.2.10. Connections to employment resources.

Grsnlle Pathways Eirfilbll A Contractor
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2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the facility Is open weekdays from 8;30 am.
Eastern Standard Time (EST), until each evening's programming ends and on
Saturdays from 8;00 am until 2:30 pm (EST).

2.4. The Contractor shall recruit individuals through methods, that include, but are
not limited to:

2.4.1. Sodal media.

2.4.2. Regional Providers.

2.4.3. Doorways.

2.4.4. Community members.

2.4.5. Employer groups.

2.5. The Contractor shall implemeni a,process to identify, recruit and engage
individuals with an OUD, including individuals not currently receiving services
from the Contractor, who may be Interested in pursuing employment and/or
educational opportunities or who may be underemployed and are seeking a.
living wage.

2.6. The Contractor shall screen potential center participants with OUD who ace
unemployed, underemployed or seeking to make a career transition and
schedule same day appointments, when available, with the Employment
Specialist to initiate the Intake process.

j

2.7. The Contractor shall provide Information regarding its workforce, job placement
and employer education and support programs via mailings and presentations
to community partners through meetings and other relevant forums to describe

.  its workforce program and to promote the quality of its labor pool.

2.8. The Contractor shall refer participants to treatment to and/or accept referrals
from:

2.8.1. Residential providers.

2.8.2. Recovery housing for mothers and children.

2.8.3. Other sober houses in their region.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure all participants are advised, informed or made
aware of all services available, including but not limited to:

2.9.1. Recovery housing.

2.9.2. Sober Housing.

2.9.3. Aftercare services.

2.9.4. Employrnent support services.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure all sen/ices are provided in a manner that
demonstrates operations are managed according to the five (5) tenants of:

Granite Pelhways ExhtollA ContrBCtor Inllial^^
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2.10.1. Urgency.

2.10.2. Ownership.

2.10.3. Learn by doing.

2.10.4. Lifelong learning.

2.10.5. Motivation through productivity.

2.11. The Contractor shall accept evaluation results from referring providers and
have an intake process that is comprised of the following:

2.11.1. Psychosodal evaluation;

2.11.2. Career essentials review; and

2.11.3. Comprehensive service plan.

2.12. The Contractor shall determine appropriate level of program engagement and
activities for each participant based on a comprehensive intake/assessment
process, current life circumstances, and current.level of treatment, If any, which
may include:

2.12.1. Recent detox/inpatient/intensive treatment defined as fifteen (15) or
more hours per week, that results in an individual being assigned to
receive Work Readiness 101/Career Exploration services.

2.12.2. Current non-intensive treatment defined as less than 15 hours per
week, that results in an individual receiving concurrent workforce
readiness activities and treatment hours ensuring workforce
activities are scheduled in consideration of the participant's :
treatment schedule to avoid any scheduling conflicts.

2.12.3. No active treatment that results in the Individual being placed on a
fast-track ensuring other ancillary baniers to employment are
addressed and accelerated suite of job preparation services are
provided to move individuals rapidly to job placement.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure services are offered in a flexible manner in multiple
modalities including, but not limited to:

2.13.1. Instructor led, class-based training.

2.13.2. Group-based activities.

2.13.3. One-on-one training sessions.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals are enrolled In other.services and

supports that aid individuals in recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce
for which they are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

2.14.1. The Community Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

Granllo Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.14.2. The NH Department of Labor National Health Emergency
Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery.

2.14.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly WorWorce l.nitlative.

2.14.4. NHWortts.

2.14.5. NH Employment Security.

2.15. The Contractor.shall provjde Power of Possible Work Readiness curriculum,
which includes but is not limited to:

2.15.1. Access to 240 hours of job search/job readiness content via
FedCap Academy, an online web-based learning management tool
available 24 hours a day/7 days a week.

2.15.2. Participation in employer-led mock interviews.

2.15.3. 60 hours of dynamic.instruction and time management activities
designed to produce "employer read/ job seekers.

2.15.4. Get Hired!.

2.15.5. Exploring My Opportunities.

2.15.6. Power Interviewing.

2.15.7. Power of Personality.

2.15.8. Positive Me!

2.16. The Contractor shall utilize Single Stop USA to determine if an individual is
eligible for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Women.
Infants, and Children (WIC), Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) or Child Care
Tax Credit (CTC), health Insurance, and/or Low Income Energy Assistance.

2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with local higher educational and vocational
training institutions in order to identify and provide vocational training and
educational opportunities to individuals in the treatment and/or recovery service
setting.

2.18. The Contractor shall conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to
determine, ah individual's level of skills.; strengths, and readiness to Seek and

' enter the workforce ensuring the process is based on a person-centered focus
grounded in individual choice and self-determination.

2.19. The Contractor shall utilize Diagnostic Vocational Evaluation (DVE) for
conducting vocational assessments. DVE is an assessment provided to
individuals to determine the following;

2.19.1. Vocational interests;

2.19.2. Aptitudes;

2.19.3. Skills;

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Iniliais
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2.19.4. Capabilities; and

2.19.5. Educational attainment levels.

2.20. The Contractor shall utilize the vocational assessment and participant inputs to
design individual vocationat plans of action that include appropriate levels of
services and resources, including but not limited to;

2.20.1. Resume writing.

2.20.2. Job application writing. ,

2.20.3. Improving client Interviewing skills.

2.20.4. Motivational interviewing to increase a client's willingness and
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities may also
be required.

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure all staff are trained in Motivational Enhancement

Techniques (MET), which includes but is not limited to;

2.21.1. Open-ended Question, Affirmations, Reflective Listening and
Summarizing (OARS).

2.21.2. Four Motivational Interviewing principles: Express Empathy, Roll
with Resistance, Support Self-efficacy, and Develop Discrepancy.

2.22. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed for and receive, as
appropriate;

2.22.1. Financial assistance for transportation to classes.

2.22.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as
necessary.

2.22.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search
functions.

2.23. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan for each participant that
addresses previous bam'ers to employment. Including but not limited to:

2.23.1. Poor job history.

2.23.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

2.23.3. Criminal background.

2.24. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources
and assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include,
but are not limited to:

2.24.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2.24.2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

Gremte Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.24.3. Providing individuals with job-shadowing and internship
opportunities.

2.25. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided with resources that support those goals,
including but not limited to:

2.25.1. Training and class stipends.

2.25.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

2.25.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.26. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative
to offer opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees
in recovery as a means to reduce stigma, identify employment opportunities,
and increase the number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.27. The Contractor shall utilize a sector-based approach to job development and
target a diverse ,range of businesses ensuring activities include, but are not
limited to;

2.27.1. Conducting personalized initial outreach to a business's hiring
managers.

2.27.2. Explaining the purpose and benefits of the Initiative, including but
not limited to financial Incentives that are available.

2.27.3. Requesting a meeting to explore the possibility of enlisting the
business In the effort.

2.28. The Contractor shall educate employers on services available to them for hiring
individuals which shall include, but Is not limited to:

2.28.1. State's transitional benerpts.

2.28.2. Support with transportation.

2.28.3. Retention case management.

2.28.4. Personal development platform.

2.28.5. Fedcap Academy.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Director manages the day-to-day
program operations which includes, but is not limited to:

3.1.1. Contracts.

3.1.2. Space.

3.1.3. Human resources.

3.1.4. Budgeting.

Granlle Pathiways Exhibit A Contfactor lnHtals"^ ̂
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3.1.5. Ensuring efficiency of workflow.

3.1.6. Ensuring implementation and operation of all program services and
operations.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Employment Specialist job duties include, but
are not limited to:

3.2.1. Administering intakes and assessments.

3.2.2. Coordinating employment-related activities and offsite trainings.

3.2.3. Providing barrier remediation services.

3.2.4. Providing employment and training related activities and supportive
services in a classroom environment.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Job Developer identifies, develops and
maintains relationships with employers in order to create employment or on-
the-job/job shadowing opportunltiiEis for individuals.

4- Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall track and report, on a quarterly basis, Department data
requirements for programs Including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an
opioid use disorder.

4.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as
age, gender, race, and ethnicity.

4.1.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.1.4. Start date of employment per individual.

4.1.5. Type of position per individual.

4.1.6. Name of employers per individual.

4.1.7. Length of employment per individual.

4.1.8. Aggregate percentage of individuals employed per month.

4.1.9. Number of employers recnjited per month.

4.1.10. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
individuals in recovery per month

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete
provided training programs.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain
employment.
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5.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact arxt coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

6. State Opiotd Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
.  initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal Infonnation sharing and referral

agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with
all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

6.2. The Contractor shall complete client referrals to applicable Regional Hubs for
substance use sen/ices within two (2) business days of a client's admission to
the program.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

6.3.1. If the Contractor Is unable to offer services within the required
timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated, inhplementation
plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service
start dates.

6.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and
liquidate unspent funds If services are not in place within ninety (90)
days of the contract effective date.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Pavfnent

1. the State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.6,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal funds as follows: 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, State Opioid Response
Grant, CFDA #93.788, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), TI081665.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's cunent
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in die fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits 8-1, Budget through Exhibit 8-3.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure (he invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4. The Slate shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department revievy, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Melissa.Girdrd(Sdhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant St. 4'^FL
Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, (he Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be v/ithheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10.Notwithstandir>g paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budge! jine items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhit)it$ within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Grsnlle Palhv^ays

RFP-201«DAS-12-WORKF
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SPECIAL PRQVISIQNS

Contradors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be us^ only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtheraf>ce of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants end
agrees.as follows:

1. Compilance with Fedorai and State Laws: if the Contractor Is pemiltted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance witfi applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time end Manner of Determination: Eligibility daterminaticns ̂ all be made on forms provided by
the Department for thai purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documontatlon: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data Tile on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ail
information necessary to support an eligibility determination 8f>d such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with'all forms and docurhentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

A. Fair Hoarlnga: The Contractor understands that all applicants for sendees hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have e right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The'
Contractor .hereby covenants and egrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form arid that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is e breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. Tha State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sUb-agreemeni if it is .
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofncials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parlies
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prfor to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for experises incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall.be deemed to obligate or requirejthe Department to purchase services .
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors Msts, at a rate

- which exceeds the amounts reasonable end necessary to essure the quality of such service, or at a
rate'which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for'such service. If at any time during the term' of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reirnburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third parly funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementln

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contrector InlUaJs.
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7.3. Demand repaymant of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constilute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligit^llty of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse (he Department for ell funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineDgible for such servtcesat
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

8. MaintonarKO of Rocorde; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants end agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ell costs
and other expenses irtcurred by the Contractor In the perfonnance of the Contract, end all
income received or collected.by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which ere acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as

.  purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, end other records requested or required by (he
Department.

6.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollmenl, atterxfance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of epplicationend
eligibility (including all forms required lo determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regutations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
OfTtce of Mar\agement and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of Slates, Local Governments, end Non
Profit Orgartlzations' end the provisions of Slandeirds for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities end Functions. issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of (his Contract and (he period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health end Human Services. ar>d any of (heir
designated repfesenlatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts snd transcripts.

9.2. Audi! Liabilities: in addition to end not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contracl. it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall, be held liable for any state
Of federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disaliowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Rocorde: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with (he performance of the services end the Contract shall be conftdential and shallnot
be disclosed'by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state tews and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use end disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their offlclel duties and for pulses
directly connected to the administration of the services end the Contract; end provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract (or any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractoragrees to submit the foliowing reports at thefoiiowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financiai Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a delaiied description of

80 costs and norvatiowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other inforrnation as shail be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payntent hereunder. Such Financiai RepoHs shall be 8ut>mitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thlr^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in thePropbsal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units pro\^ed for in the Contract and u(X)rS payment of the price limttation
hereunder. the Contract and alt the obligations of the parlies hereunder (except such obligation's as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to"deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefoiiowing
statement:'

13.1. The preparation of this,(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wfth the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were avaitabie or
required, e.g., the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (writien. video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract Shan have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, t^ochures. resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior wriKen approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulatlona: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose en order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shell be required for' the operation of the said facility or the pertormance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms Gr>d
.conditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the foregoing requirements.'tha
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees that; during the term of this Contract the facilities shail
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshatend
the local fire protection agency, and shall t>6 in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): the Contractor will provide en Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more arxl has 50 or

ExWbli C - Special ProvWona Contractor 1011181^^^^^
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more employeos. it will maintain a current EEOP on Tile and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with (ewer than 50 employees, regardless of (he amount of the award, the recipient will provide en
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying ii Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, end'medical and educational institutions are exempt from (he
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submit a certificalion form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP'Certification Forms are avallabla at; http:/A(vww.ojp.u$doj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficioricy (LEP): As clarined by Executive Order 13166, lmprovir>g Access to
Services for persons wllh Limited English Proficiency. 8r>d resulting egency guidance; national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omntb'us Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 19M end TlOe Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonebte steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhencoment of Contractor Empioyoo Whlstloblower Protections: The
following shall apply to.ali contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (S6P 2013)

(8)'This contrect end employees wodung on this contrect will be subje^ to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whisQeblqwer protections establishedat
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Rscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) end FAR 3.908.

(b) The Conlractor shall inform Us employees in w^ting, in the predominant language of the worl^force,
of employee svhistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contrector may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expense to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but ihe Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated.
function(s). This Is eccomplished through a written agreement that specifies ectivities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctioris if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor end the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontrecior compliance
with those conditions.

'  When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Conlractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate (he prospective subcontractor's ability to perform (he acti^lies, before delegating
(ha function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities.and how. sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is rK>t adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Spodai PrevbJons Contractor Inliiat*
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19.4. Provide (o DHHS en ennual schedule Identifying alJ subcontractors, delegated functlonsand
responsibUitles. and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS Shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor idenUries deficiencies or areas for improvement ere identified, the Contractor shell
Jake corrective ection.

20. Contrect Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct end indirect Items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordarKe with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal taws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department end containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms.and condiiions of the
Contract end setting forth the totai cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department end specified
in Exhibit 6 of the Contract

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, end
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be emended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

MIVll
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Rovlalona to Form P-37, General Provlalone

1:1. Section 4. GondilionBl Nature of Agreement. Is rBolaced as tollowa:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrery, alt obligaUons of the State
hereunder. Including without limitation, the conUnuance of payments. In wt^ole or In part,
under this Agreement ere contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequeni changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or exeiMtive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modirios the approprieiion or ovailebility of fundihg for this Agreement end the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In wttole or In part. In no event shell the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of e reduction, termination or modification of epproprialed or available funds, the
State shall, have the right to withhold payment until such funds become evailabie. if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State, shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account{s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or eny other account In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by edding the following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for eny reason, at the sole discmtion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor whnen notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eahy
termination, develop and submit to the State a Tronslllon Plan for services under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to. Identifying the present end future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes e process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State end shail promptly provide detailed
.  information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement ere transitioned to having services delivered by enother
entity Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of ratifying clients and other affected individuals
about the trensition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Tmnsltion Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfectory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties end epprovel of the Govemor end Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Iden^ed In Section V3 of the General Provisions agrees to compfy with the provisions of
Sedions $1St-516.0 of the Dru^-Free WbrltplaM Act of 198^ (Pub. L. 100^90, Title V. Subtitte D; 41
U.S.'C: 70'i et-seq.). end further egroM to have the Contractor's representative, as identified' ir) Sisctions
1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions execute ttefoDowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INOrVIDljALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE r CONTRACTORS

This certification Is r^ulred by the regulations implementing Sections S1S1.-5160 of the Dnjg^ree
Workplace Act of 19'U (Pub. L. 10CL690. Title V. SubtHUe p; 41 U.S.C. 701 et s^.). the Januaiy 31.
1989 regulations were amended arid put^lished as Part II of ̂'e May 25, 19^ Floral Register (pages
216d1-21'691), and require .cbrtifiMtion by grantees (end by ihf^nce, 6ub<g(a'nte:es 'and.sut>7 '
coritractors), pnor to .l^ard. that they ynll memteiri e drug-free Worttplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regutdliori provides' that a graritee (and by infeferiice. sub-grantees end sub-confractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certjficatibn to the OepartMeht in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certiftcates for
each grant during the federial fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation pf fact upon, which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certif^tlqh or violatlori of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of p8)^ent8. suspension or
termlnatio'n of grarits.' or government .wide suspehslpr) or debarme'nt. Corrt.mctQrs uslrt'g th.is form should
send it to: '

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee ceitifies that it will or will continue tp provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statem'erit notifying'employes that the unlawful rnanufeclufe, distribution,

dispensing,- possession or use of e controUed substance is prohibited In the grantee's
' workplace end specifying the actions thai will be takeri against employees for yiotatipn of such

prohlbitipn;
1.2. Establishing en ongoing drug-heeawareness program to inform em'p.loyees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. the grantee's policy of mainleinir^ a drug-free wortiplace;
i .2.1 Any available drug counseling, rehabiirtation, and employee e^slstance prpgn^s; end
1.2.4. The pertattles that rnay be irrip.osbd upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workpla.ce;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee'to be erigaged In the perforrnance of the grant be

given e copy of the statement required by. peregraph (a);
1:4. Noting the employee in the statement required by. paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee v^l
1.4.1. Abide by the terms ̂  the statement; end ■
1.4.2. Notify the erriployer in writing of his or her cpnvictipri for a violation pfe criminal drvig

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
cohvit^wn; •

1.5. Notifying the egency in veiling, vyithin le.n calendar days after recerviiig notice .under
subpamgraph 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise receiving actual notice d such corivi^on,
Erhployers of convicted erhployees m'ust provide notice, mciudihg position title, to every grant
ofTtcer on whose grant acth^ the corivicted employee was working, unless the Federal egency

ExWWt D - CtftBaOon rtgsrtlna Dfug Fmo Vendor
WorlipteceBeqidrtmenti - o 'M-JO

CUOHMSniOrt) Pftp0lOf2 Driay-^JiT 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE.1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

OocuSign Envelope 10: 3&A62ACF-40E8U4F6-SCB4-9230500C0698

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

htt designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
iden^ication num^rfs) of each affected grant;

.  iiS. Taking one' of the following actions, within' 30 caler^ar days of receiving notice under
sutiperagreph 1.4.2, with respect to any employe who Is m convicted
I.Gil. T^ing appmpriate personnel action against such en employee, up to and includino

leimination. consi^erit wHh the recjuirerhenta of the Reh^ilitaition'Ad of 1973, as
emended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to perticipate satisfactorily in a drug ahuse assistance or
rehdbQitetipn program appirov^ for such purposes by a Federal. Stale, or local Heatlh,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
imptement^tibn of paragraphs 1.1.1.2,1.3,1.4, 1.5, arid 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the Bite(8) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not idehtrfied here.

Vendor Name;

Date Name; • •
Title: CT \ r

ExNblt D - CertlftcaOon reesnring Drug Free Vendor Inmeb
Workptoce RequlrenMinti

curoroisnio?!) Pege2of2 Dete



DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

DocuSIgn Envelope ID; 3aA62ACP-40E&^F6-6C84-923050DC069B

New Hampshire Department of-Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REQARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Frovislpne agrees to comply wHh the pro^iisions of
Sedlon 319 of Public Law lbl-i21, Govemment wide Guidance for New Rest^ions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352..and further agie.es to have the Qpritrador's representative, as Identified In Sedibi)8 1.11
end '1.12 of the Gertere! Pro^slbns execute the foilowirig Certlficatioh:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES.- CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION r CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRlCULfuRE • CONTRACTORS

Prpgram.s (indicate-appllttble program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy F'emilies under Title Iv-A
.'Child Support Enforcbrnerit Program under Title iV-0
'Social ̂ ryicM Block Grant Pi^i^ ur^er Title XX
'Medicaki Prbgrani' ur^er'Tjtle XI.X
'Community Services ̂ Ibck Grant under Title VI
'Child Cere Devel.opmerit Block Gra'rtt under Title IV

The undersigned cerlrfies. to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriat.ed funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of tha underaignM, to
any person for ii^fluencing .of ettem'ptirt'g to Influer)ce en of^r'or employee of .er^y agericy. a .Memper
of Corrgress, an ofTicer or emptoyee of Congress, or an employee of a Memtwr ̂  Congress in
connectiori with the imfdirig of any Federal contract, Mntin'uation, renewal, amendnient, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant; loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or 8ui>^ntr8cto.r).'

2. If enyfunds other than Federal appropriated funds have beep paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer .of employee of any agericy. a Merhber of Congress,
an officer of ernplpyee of .Cdr>gress, of ah employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, of .cooperative agfeenient (end by specific mention sub-grahlee of sub^
contractor), the undersig'ried shall complete and submit ̂ .andard Form.LLL. (Disclosure Form'to
Report Lobbying, iri 'accdrdarice with its Ihstfu'ctlons. attached end identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned .shal.) require dt'at the language of this cert.ificai.k)n be included In the award
document for 8ub;>awafd6 at all'tiers (including subcdntracU. sub-graMs, end contracts under grants,
loans, and cpoperetive agreem'ents) and that all sub^recrpients shall certify enid disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represehtation of fact upon which reliance was pilaced wHen.this.lransactipn
was made .or entered into.; Submissiori of this certification Is e prerequisite .for makir>g or eh.ierihg Iritb this
tfen^ctioh imiposed .t>y Sedloh 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who .fails to file the raqulried
certificatidn shairbe subject to a cfvi) penalty of not less than 310.000 and not rhbre tha'ri $100,000 for
each such'failure.

Vendor Name;

Date Name:

Tit)e:G^ U \ TecVop.

Ejdtlbn E - CenMuOon RoganSne Lobbying Vendor iritilala
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. CERTIFICATION REGARDING OEBARMENT. SUSPENSiON
.  AMP_i?THER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pert 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Otiw Responsibility Matters, and further egreM to have the Cdntrt^or's
representative, ias identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Ganaral Provisions execute the following
Cartificatidn:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTlFICAinON
1. Gy signing and submitting this prop<^l (centred), the prospective primary participant is provktihg the

certification set out b.elow.

2. The jn^tlity of a person to pro^e the certiflcatkrn required below win not necossahty result In denial
of participation In this covereid transaction. If rtecassary. the prospective participant shali submit an
e)9lar)8lion of why H cannot provide the certlficetlon. The certification or explanation will be
wns'iderad in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Seryj^' (pHHS)'
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospered prithary
participant to furnish a certificatiori or en explanation shell disqualify such persori from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material represent^ion of fact upon which reliahca was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this trehs^ion. If it is later determined th^ the pimpective
prtrna'ry participant kr^oi^ngiy'rertderad an erroneous certification. In addition to other remedies
Bvallable to the Federal Gpyerhrhent. DHHS msy termir\ate this transaction for cause or defautt.

4. The prospeclhm primary perticipant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this pr^osal (centred) Is submitted if at any time die prospective primary participant learns
that tts-certification was erronadus when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred,-* 'suspended.' 'Ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transadipn,' 'partlclpani,* 'pe^on,* 'prirhary covered triBnsactlqn,r 'principal,' 'proporsal,* end
'voluntarily excluded.* as used In this dau'se. have the meanings sat out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sap the
attached dahhitions.

6. -The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
p^posed covered tmoMdion be entered into, It shell not knowingly enter Into any lov^r.tler covered
trariMdtion with a parson who Is debarred, suspended, declared Inetlgible. or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wfll Include the
c^se tiUed 'Certlficatiori Regarding Debarment. Suspensloh. Ineligibllity end Voluntary ̂ elusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transe^.ns.* provided by DHHS, without modifcallori. In all Iwef tier covered
transactions and In el) solicit^ons for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A perticipant in a covered trahMction may rely upon a certifcatipn of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, pr'involuritanly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows (hat the certiflcatiori is errdnMus.' A paitidpbnt may
decide the inefhod.end frequency by which it determines the eligibnity of its principals. Each
participarit may, but is'not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained iri the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to rer^ar In good fal^ the carlification required by this clause. The knowledge end

EjiWWt F - CefiWcfltton Regartflng Odarmcrt. Suspenstoo Vendor
And Other RetporelWlBy Maner* ^
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Infomatron of e participsnt is not required to exceed that which is rtormafly possessed by a pKrdent
person in the ordinary course'of business dealings.

10. Except for trahuctions authorized under paragraph 6 of these ihstryctjons. If a parti6i)3ent iii a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered Imnsection with a pe^n who Is
suspended, debarred, i.neligibie. or voluntarily excluded frorh pertidpetion in this trensaction, in
addition to other remediM evia^le to the Federal govemrherit, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for ceuM or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective prtrnary particjisant cerfrftes to the best of its knowledge end belief, that ii end Its

prindpals:
11.1. ere rtot presantty debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared .Ineligible, or

yoluntahly exdi^ed from covered transactions by arty Federal depai^erit or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this prpposai (contrectj been convicted of or had

a d^ ju'dgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crtJhlnal offense in
connection with obtalriing, anemptirig to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
bansection of a contract under a public transaction: violation of F^eral or State antithist
statute or .commission of embezztemont theft, forgery, bribery, fabiftc^tion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or reiving etobh property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for dlhenvlse criminally or cMlly charged by a gdyemmahtal entity
(  (Federal. State or local), with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)

of this certification; and
11.4. have nol within a three-year period preceding thb appltcationfproposal had one or more public

transactions (Federet, State or local) terminated for cause or de.faull.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification,-such prospective participant shaft ehach an exptanatior) to this prppoul (contract).

LOVyER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By sigr^iing and subrnltting thb lower tier prop<^l (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifiea to Ihe.bdst of Its knowledge and belief that It and its phncipals;
13.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debafrnent. dedared ineligible, or

vojunta.rily exduded from partidpation in thb trensa.ction by eny federal department or agency.
13.2; where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, euch

prospective participant shad attach an explanation to thb proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidparit further egrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that II will
indude this daiuse entitled XerWca'tion Regardirig Debarment, Susji^nsion. Ineligibility, end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modificetion in all lower tier covered
triansactions and in all sollcilations for lower tier'covert transactions.

Vendor Name:

Date' Neme; '

\tecior-
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH»BASED ORGANIZATIONS ANO

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idehtifi^ iri SiBCtlon 1.3 of the Oeherel Proviaibhs ̂ fees by eignaiure of the Cohtrector'e
representfitive as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to exec^e the follpwing
certification:

Vendor will con^ly, end will require any subgraritees or subcontractors to comply, wtth any applicable
federal nondiscrvnirustjon requirements, which iriay Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe StrMtt Act of 1968 (42 U-.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federel funding under this statute from dis'crtmlnating, either In emptoymeihl' practices or in
the delivery of se'ryices or benefrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, natiorSal origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain risclpienta to produce en Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights (^llgati^s of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding ui^er this
st^ute are prohibited from discruninating. either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex: The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

• the-Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibfts recipients of federal financial
asisistance from discrimlneting on the basis of race, color, or national origih in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 tJ.S.C. Sedion 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal finenciat
assistance from discrimiriating on the basis of disability. In regard to emptoynierit arid the .delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1930 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination.and ensures'equal opportunity for Arsons with disabilKies In erhployment, State and tocal
government services, public eccommodations, commercial facilities, arid transportation';

- the Education Amehdrnents of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sax'lh federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Oiscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sectiorts 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
ba'sis of age iri programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
emptoyment discrirritnation;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations • pJJOP Grant Programs); 26 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Dej^rtment d Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnalion; Equal Employment Opportuh^; Policies
end Procedures); ̂ ecutlv'e Order N6.13279 (equal protedibn of the laws for felth-based arid cornrnunity
organizations); Ex^iitive Order No. 13559. which provide furldamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 26 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Departrnent of Justice Regulations - Equal Tre.atrrient for.Faith-Based
Origani^ions); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National.Defense Authorization
Act (NdAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Pn^ram for
Enhancement ̂  Con^ct Employee Whistleblower ProtecUons, which protects erhployees against
reprisal for certain whistle blo^ng activities In cbrinecllon with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant'. False certification or yiolatlori of the certtficatlon sh^l be grounds
suspension of payments, susperision or terinination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

E4AiilG
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In the event a Federal or Slate Murt or Federal or State administi^ive agency makes a finding of
di^mlnation after a due proems hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nattonal origin, or sex
gainst a reciptont of funds, the recipient'vnll forward a ̂ y of the finding to'the OfTice for GMI Rights, to
the epplic^ie'contracting 'agency or divislqn within the Depaitment of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor idernified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by s^natureof the Contractor's
representeUve as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the Generel Prbvlsiohs. to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) (he Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicted ebove.

Vendor Name;

Date Name; ^
Title:

EiMbilG
Vendor insieb
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIROWMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, C - Envfronmenta! Toba^ Smoke, also Known as the Pfo-ChiWren Act of 1994
(Ad), requires that smoking nOt be permitted In eny portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity arid used routinely or reqularty for the provtsion of health, day cere, education,
or library Mrvicas to children under the age of 18. If the seivicas are funded by FederbJ prbdfams either
dirOdly or through State or tocbl govemrnents, by Federal grant, contract, ban. or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private reisidences, facllitres funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, ̂ nd portions of facilities used for inpetient drug or alcohol treatment- FaQura
to comply with the provi^ns of the law may result In the imposition of a cMI. monetary penalty of up to
$1 OOp per day ahd/or the imposition of en admlnlstfatiye cpmpliahce order on the reisponsible eritity.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the (^neral Provisions egrecs, by slgnslure of the Ccmtractor's
represer^tive as identified In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the Gerwral Provisions, to ex^ute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable effoils to comply with
an applicabia provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: ■

Emibb M - CertflcftSon Reganjbg Vendor
EnvtronmenUl Tobecod SmoSo _

cuo^ioTW Pege i ot 1 6116%



DocuSign Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65CB51

DocuSign Envelope ID: 38>^2ACr-40Ee-44F6-8CB4-g23050DC06g8

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vondor iderttlfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply wtth the Health Ihsuranpe Portability and AccoMntabllity Act. Public Law 104-191 and
v^h the Standards fpr Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heal^ Informatloh, 45
CFR Paris 160 end 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate* shall mean Vendor and subMntractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to prot^.ed health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall rnean the State of Now Marnpshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 PefinttlonB.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45.
. Code of Federal ̂ Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations;

0. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Refcord Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aqareoation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means tf^ Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIIL Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the Arherican Recovery and Reinvestrnent Act of

.  2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Pprtability end Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the StarKlards for Privacy end Security of Individually Identifjable Health
Iriformation. 4SCFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendmerits thereto.

1. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the. term 'individuer In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shalMnclude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Sectipn164.501{g).

j  'Privacy Rule' sfiall rnean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Paris 1^ and 164, promulgate under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Hurrian Services.

k. 'Protecte Health Information' shall have the same nieariing as the term 'protecte health
iriformatiori' In 45 CFR Sectjon 160.103; limited to the Information create pr received by
Business Associate from or oh behalf of Covere Entity.

3^014 Ejwwtl vendof InrttetfT V
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I. "Required bv Law^ shiaH have the same meaning as the term "required by laW^ In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'gecretary'shall mean the Secretary of the Departmertt of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Irifom^ation' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a techholoiay standard that renders protected health Inforrhdtion unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endors^ by
a. standards developing organization that Is accredited by the Anierlun National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definiltons • Alt terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanirig
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the senrices outllhed under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not (imit^ to all
its directors, officers, employes arid agents, shall not use, disclose, malhtaih or transmit
PHI in any manner that would .constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b: Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggr^ation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a .
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to. making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conftdenlially and
used or further di^losed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreerhenl from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification

. Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breacri.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in fesponsei to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Buslri^s
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Associate shall refrain from disciosirSg the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
females.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
te bound by addrtiohai restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
saf^uai^s of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rute, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall riot disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restri^ons and shall abide by any additional security safiagua^s.

(3) Obllqationa and Activmesot Buslhoae Asaoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Pnva^ Officer immediatety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protect^
health informatibn not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heal^ Information and/or any security incident that may have an inipact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Busiriess Associate shall irnmediately perform a risk assessment when it becornes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but hot be
limits to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
'  types of Identifiers and (he likelihood of re-identification;
.0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the

disclosure was made;
p vyhether the protected health informatibn was actually acquired or viewed

' 0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48. hours of the
breach and immediatety report the findings of the risk assessment in wrtting to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with aij sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Nptificatioh Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records retatir^ to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business' Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Prrvacy and
Security Rule.

6. Business Associate shall require all of Its business asso.ciates that receive, use or have
access to PHI urider the Agreement, to agree In writirig to adhere to the same
restrictions and cpnditioris on the use and disclosure of PHI coritalhed herein, including
the duty to return er destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party berieficiary of the Cohtractpr's busiriess associate
agreements with Contractor's iritended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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7tn

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contrad provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health inforirriatjoh.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate Shan make available duhr^g normal business hours at its offices alt
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered .Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written requed from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as dired^ by Covered Entify. to an individual in order to meet the
f^ulrements under 45 CFR Sedion 164.524.

h. vyithin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI of a record about ah individual contained In a Designate Recbrd
Set, the Business Assodate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its

. obligations under 45 CFR Section 1^.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disdosures as would required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an

,  individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.558.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of reMlving.a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclbsures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to ifutfill its bbligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with resect to PHI In accordarice with 45 CFR
Secbbh 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
direcUy from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such requesi to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
indiylduars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA bnd the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity 6^ such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Busiriess Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
destruction is not.feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Assoclate^shall continue to extend the protections of the .
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purpo^s that make the return or destruction Ihfeasible, for so long as Busine^
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Associate maintains sucH PHI. If.Covared Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ali PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covert Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitati<m(8) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance wi^ 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation niay affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant lo 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Sei^n 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Eritity has agreed tb In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such r^trlctioh rnay affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI".

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may imrhediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Buislhess Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit .I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
temiirtate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tlrneffame specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination hor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
.violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatorv References. All terms used, but no! otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same rheaning as those terms Iri the Privacy and Security Riiie, amended
from time to tirne. A reference In the Agreemerlt, as amended to lnclude this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means (he Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendfnent. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreerhent, from time to time as. Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requiremerits of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has ho ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The.parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
tb ̂ fmit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy arid Security Rule. ^ .
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e. SeqreQatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(&) or circumstahQe is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms pr
conditions which can tM given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms end conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severatrle.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disdbsure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
defense and iridemnificatlpn providons pf section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Co
Nama^f the VendorThe State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name ofAulhorl^ Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date I ' '

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

C"? SA fg.c^o'C'.
Title of Authorized Representative

^ - O A
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AHD TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding /^xountebility end Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individuel
Fed^l giants equal to or greater than $25,000 and award^ on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data relied to executive cqrnpensatioii and as'spciat^ firstmer sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
InKiat award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant rhod'rficatiorts result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requl^ents, as of the date of the award.
In accofdanw with.2 CFR Part 170 (Reportirtg Subaward and Executive Compensation Iriformeticn}, the
Department ̂  Health and Humort Servi^s (DHHS) must report the foltowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the.FFATA rsporting requirements:
1. Narne of entity
2. ^burit of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts! CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source ' •
6. Awiard.titie descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Lpcatiqh of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
i9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total dampensation and names of the lop five executives if:

ib.i. More than 80% of annual gross rieyenues are the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater thm $25M annually and

10.2. CompenMtlon mfomiatibn Is not already avattable through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, phis 3d days, in which
the ̂ ard or award emendrnent Is made.
The-Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the.provisioris of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Pub^ Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR PeiH 170 (Reporting Subaward ar)d Executive Cornpenution Inforrnetion), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as iderttified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Gerieral Provisibris
exMute the 'follpwing C'ertificatton:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide nee^ information u outlined ebove to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply wHh.ell applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Trarispairehcy Act.

Vendor Name:

%
Date Name:

Title: •

EitftlWI J - CertlAcatlon R«s>r^'XI Ihc Feders) Funding Vendor Inhlah^
AocounteUIty And Transiency AO (FFATA) Compfsnee ^ ^
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FORMA

Ae the Vendor rdentlfied in Sectk>n -1.3 of the General Provisions, I certi^ thiat the responses to the
below list^ quMtiono are true and accurate.

1. the DUNS numtier for your entity *l6 ̂

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed riscal year, did your business of organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts. subcontractS;
loans, grants, sub-grants.'and/or cooperative agreements; end (2) S25.000.000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontiects, loan's, grants. 8ut>grant8. and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO. atop hare

If the answer to M above Is YES. please answer the foQowing;

3. Opes the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed urider section 13(a) or ■15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.78m(a). 760(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the or^swer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names end compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization ere as follows:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUCHKSni«71)
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OHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The fdliowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. 'Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized abqulsilion. unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally IdentlflaWe
Information, whether physical or electronic, With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. Confidential Information' or 'Conridential Data" means alt confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as alt medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits end personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information arid
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Informalion also includes any and ell information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behatf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed' in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This infonmation Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Informalion (PHI). Personal Information (Pi). Personal Financial
Information (PFI),' Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either.failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
e system for the processing or storage of data; and, changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacemen! of Hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorbed
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Infofmatlon
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and

-  approved.' by means of the Stete. to trerismit) will be considered ari Open
rietwork end not adequately s.ecure for the tiensmlsslon of unehcrypted PI. PFl,
PHI or confldentlal DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or 'PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individuars Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometrlc records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenllfiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 end 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health end Human Services.

A

10. "Protected Health Information* (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information' In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Informaiton at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
riot secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by e standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disctosure of Conftdential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
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request for disclosure or> the basis that it Is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has en opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the. Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
edditional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
resuictlons and rhust abide by any .additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data betvraen appllcatiorts, the Contractor attests the applications have

'  been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In ^ber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure Secure transmission via the internet

2. Computer Disks end Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Emalt End User may only employ email to transmit Cbrifidentjal Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to.receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Cdnfidientlai
Data-, the secure socket layers' (SSL) rhust be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data trar^smitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also kno^ as File Sharing Sites. End U0r may not use.file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Qoogle Cloud Storage, to transrhit
Confidential Data. I

6. Ground Mali Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ce/f/fred ground
mail within the contiriental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^.and password-protected.

6. Open Wiretess Networ1(s. End User may not trarisrhit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless net^rk. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9.. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private, ne^rk (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User^s mobile device(8) or laptop from which information will be
trartsmltted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol, if
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User vbrlll
structure the Folder and access pnvileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data wili^ be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Oevicas. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it wll not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also' apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabiliiles. and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale, of NH systems
and/or Department confidenliat information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Infonmation.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAfy^P/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices rriust have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-maNvare utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection end firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

^  1. If the Contractor will maintain any ConHdentlai Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program

.  in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-86. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified. withlr> thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Coritrector will maintain policies end procedures So protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycla. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destmction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.').
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. the Contractor will provide regular eecurtty awareness end education for Ite End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Cofttractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, inctuding breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(8). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub^ntractors prfor to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor (s a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with (he Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the sun/ey is to enable the Department and

'  Contractor to.monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departrhents discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request (he survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department arid the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the ceuses of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor .must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of ConDdentlai Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level end scope that is not less
then the level and scope of requirements epplicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552e). OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate admlnistfatlve. technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conridentiality of the Confidential Data arid to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less then the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/ind8x.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer end the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a corifidenilal information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networtt.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only IhoM authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information onty If encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Infonmation.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Infonmation received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in en area that is
physically end technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometrlc identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Idenilflable information, and In ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on ponable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name end password) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract. Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. end
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicdble obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wiil:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identlfidble information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core, response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and
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5. Determine wtiether Breach notification Is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breech notification methods, .timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be address^ and reported., as
appticable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

PHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInfomiationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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